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0 BEFORE THE STATE OFFICE 

OF 

0 ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS 

SOUTHWESTERN PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY’S 
RESPONSE TO AXM’s ELEVENTH REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

QUESTION NOS. 11-1 TFXROUGH 11-7 

Southwestern Public Service Company (SPS) files this response to AXM’s Eleventh Request 

for Information. 

I. WRITTEN RESPONSES 

SPS’s written responses to the AXh4’s EIeventh Request for Information are attached and 
incorporated by reference. Each response is stated on or attached to a separate page on which the 

request has been restated. SPS’s responses are made in the spirit of cooperation without waiving 

SPS’s right to contest the admissibility of any of these matters at hearing. Pursuant to P.U.C. PROC. 

R. 22.144(c)(2)(A), each response lists the preparer or person under whose direct supervision the 

response was prepared and any sponsoring witness. When SPS provides certain information sought 

by the request while objecting to the provision of other idormation, it does so without prejudice to 

its objection in the interests of narrowing discovery disputes pursuant to P.U.C. PROC. 
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R. 22.144(d)(5). Pursuant to P.U.C. PROC. R. 22.144(c)(2)(F), SPS stipulates that itsresponsesmay 

be treated by all parties as if they were made under oath. 

11. INSPECTIONS. 

If responsive documents are more than 100 pages but less than eight linear feet in length, the 

response will indicate that the attachment is VOLUMINOUS and, pursuant to P.U.C. PROC. 

R. 22.144@)(2), the attachment will be made available for inspection at SPS’s voluminous room at 

1150 Capitol Center, 919 Congress Ave., Austin, Texas 78701, telephonenumber(512) 476-7137. 

If a response or the responsive documents are provided pursuant to the protective order in this 

docket, the response will indicate that it or the attachment is either CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY 

SENSITIVE as appropriate under the protective order. Highly sensitive responses will be made 

available for inspection at SPS’s voluminous room, unless they form a part of a response that 

exceeds eight linear feet in length; then they will be available at their usual repository in accordance 

with the following paragraph. Please call in advance for an appointment to ensure that there is 

sufficient space to accommodate your inspection. 

If responsive documents exceed eight linear feet in length, the response will indicate that the 

attachment is subject to the FREIGHT CAR DOCTRINE, and, pursuant to Commission Procedural 

Rule 22.144@)(3), the attachment will be available for inspection at its usual repository, SPS’s 

offices in Amarillo, Texas, unless otherwise indicated. SPS requests that parties Wishing to inspect 

this material provide at least 48 hours’ notice of their intent by contacting Steven D. Arnold of 

Hinkle, Hensley, Shanor & Martin, L.L.P., 1 150 Capitol Center, 919 Congress Ave., Austin, Texas 

78701; telephone number (512) 476-7137; facsimile transmission number (512) 476-7146. 

Inspections will be scheduled to accommodate all requests with as little inconvenience to the 

requesting party and to SPS’s operations as possible. 
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Respectfblly submitted, 

XCEL ENERGY 
HINKLE, HENSLEY, SHANOR 
& MARTIN, L.L.P. 

Jerry F. Shackelford 
Texas Bar. No. 18070000 
e-mail: jerry.Eshackelford@xcelenergy.com e-mail: samold@hinWelawfirm.com 
816 Congress Ave., Suite 1650 
Austin, Texas 78701 
(512) 478-9229 e-mail: dwilfong@nklelawfirm.com 
(5 12) 478-9232 (FAX) 

Steven D. Arnold 
Texas Bar No. 01 345480 

Richard R. Wilfong 
Texas Bar No. 21474025 

Stephen Fogel, Of Counsel 
Texas Bar No. 07202010 
email: sfogel@hinklelawfirm.com 
1 150 Capitol Center 
9 19 Congress Ave. 
Austin, Texas 78701 
(512) 476-7137 
(5 12) 476-7 146 (FAX) 

COURTNEY, COUNTISS, BRIAN 
& BAILEY, L.L.P. 

By: 
Amy w l h a m e r  
Texas Bar Card No. 24010392 
email: ashelhamer@courtneylawfirm.com 
1700 Chase Tower 
Amarillo, Texas 79101 
(806) 372-5569 
(806) 372-9761 (FAX) 

ATTORNEYS FOR SOUTHWESTERN 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 
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RESPONSES 

QUESTION NO. 11-1 : 

For the period from 2000 through 2006, please provide a copy of all prior testimonyprqared 
by or for each witness who submitted testimony in this proceeding (Docket No. 32766) in 
any other regulatory or judicial proceeding. 

RESPONSE: 

A hard copy of all prior testimony prepared by or for each witness in this proceeding would 
be subject to the FREIGHT CAR DOCTRINE as defined by the Commission's Procedural 
Rules. To provide greater access to the requested materials, SPS will provide the requested 
information electronically on CD to all parties. SPS requires additional time to prepare the 
CD and will supplement this response on August 1 1,2006. 

Preparer: Jeannette McFarlin 
Sponsor: All witnesses 
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QUESTION NO. 1 1-2 : 

Regarding the recent property tax law changes enacted by the Texas Legislature in 2006, 
please explain how SPS is treating any property tax reductions it may experience as a result 
of those changes. 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to SPS’s response to Question Nos. AG-3-21 to Staffs Third Request for Information 
a d  TIEC4-27. 

Preparer: Paul Simon 
Sponsor: Timothy L. Willemsen 

SOAHDocRet NO. 473-06-2536; PUCDOCket NO. 32766 
Southwestem Public Service Company’s Response to 

AxMrs Eleventh Request for Infirmation 
Page 6 

G: \DATA\ W0~\2005\0560004\I OE2.doc 



QUESTION NO. 11-3: 

Regarding the recent property tax law changes enacted by the Texas Legislature in 2006, 
please provide all documentation related to SPS’ calculation of its property tax obligations 
before such changes and after those changes. 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to SPS’s response to Question Nos. AG-3-21 to Staffs Third Request for Information 
and TIEC4-27. 

Preparer: Paul Simon 
Sponsor: Timothy L. Willemsen 
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QUESTION NO. 114: 

Please explain in detail SPS’ treatment of property taxes in its rate filing package and the 
amount of property taxes in Texas SPS seeks to recover from ratepayers in Texas. 

RESPONSE: 

The test period level of property tax expense is included as an operating expense in taxes 
other than income. Refer to Attachment TLW-1 to the Direct Testimony of Timothy L. 
Willemsen, Volume RR-182 at Bates Stamp page 299. 

Preparer: Timothy L. Willemsen 
Sponsor: Timothy L. Willemsen 
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QUESTION NO. 11-5: 

Please identify any disputes Xcel may have with the Internal Revenue Service ( IRS) 
regarding the deductibility of Xcel’s company-owned life insurance expenses. 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to Exhibit AXMI 1-5 for discussion fiom Xcel Energy’s 1 OQ for the second quarter of 
2006. 

Preparer: Christopher A. Arend 
Sponsor: Christopher A. Arend 

SOAHDOCkt NO. 473-06-2536; PUC Dockt NO. 32766 
Southwestern Public Service Company’s Response to 

AXM’s Eleventh Request for Information 
Page 9 

G: DATA\ WORD\2005\0560004\1 OE2.doc 



QUESTION NO. 11-6: 

For any dispute identified in response to the immediately preceding request for information, 
please explain the amount of company-owned life insurance expenses SPS seeks to recover 
through rates in Texas. 

RESPONSE: 

SPS is not seeking to recover any company-owned life insurance expenses through rates in 
Texas. 

Preparer: Christopher A. Arend 
Sponsor: Christopher A. Arend 
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QUESTION NO. 11-7: 

Please explain in detail whether SPS seeks to recover tiom Texas ratepayers any penalties or 
estimated penalties that may be associated with an IRS ruling that would disallow the 
deductibility of Xcel’s company-owned life insurance expenses, and if so, the amount of 
such penalties or estimated penalties SPS seeks to recover fiom Texas ratepayers through its 
pending rate request (Le., Docket No. 32766). 

RESPONSE: 

SPS is not seeking to recover any penalties or estimated penalties associated with the 
corporate-owned life insurance dispute discussed above. 

Preparer: Christopher A. Arend 
Sponsor: Christopher A. Arend 
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 certificate of Service 

I certify that on the - day of August 2006, a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

instrument was served on all parties of record by hand delivery, Federal Express, regular first class 

mail, certified mail, or facsimile transmission. 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

U 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended June 30,u)06 

or 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF Til33 SECURITIES 
EXCaANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the trlnsidEon period from to 

Commission pile Number: 1-3034 

Xcel Energy Inc. 
(Exact name of registrant aa specified m its charter) 

Minnesota 
(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) 

. 41-0448030 
QkS.  Employer Identification No.) 

414 Nicollet Ma& MheapoHs, Minnesota 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

55401 
(Zip Code) 

Re~sneot's telephone number, inchtding area code (612) 3305500 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) bas filed all nportsrequirerl to be med by Section 13 or lS(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorterpedod that the regktmt was required to file such repats). 
and (2) has beea subject to such filing rquimmfs for the past 90 days I YCS No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelaated film or a non-accelerated filer. See dehition 
of Qaccehated filer and large accelerated fila" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one): 

Large h l e r a t e d  Fila pa3 Accelerated Filer U No~~-Accclcrated Filer 0 

Indicate by check mark whether thc regisbant is a shell company (as defied m Rule 1%-2 of the Exchange Act). 0 Yes I No 

Indicate the n u m b  of shares outslanding of  each of the issuds classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable data 

class Outstanding at July 28,2006 
common'stodt. SUO par value 405,967,399shares 

13 
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Exhibit AXM11-5 
Page 3 of 47 PART I - FINANCIAL WPORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

XCeL ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOUJIATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED) 

See Notes to CoMOlidakd Financial Statuncnb 
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X C E L E ~ G Y ~ C . ~ D S W I D ~ + ~ ~ ~  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASE FLOWS (UNAUDITED) 

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data) 

Exhibit AXMII-5 
Page 4 of 47 

Issuaw?e of common stock for rcinvtSkd dividends and 401K’s S 37,095 $ 30.114 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Exhibit AXMIIS 
Page 5 of 47 XCEL ENERGY XNC. AND SUBSIDIAIUES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED) 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

Common stoclrholders' equity - authorized l,OOO,OOO,OOO shares of $2.50'parvalue; outstanding 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Exhlbk AXMIII-5 
Page 6 of 47 

XCELEIVERGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKROIBERS' EQUITY 

AND COMPREBEpsSlvE INCOME 
(UNAUDITED) 

(Tbonaands) 
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XCEL ENERGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(UNAUDITED) 

(Thoasands) 

Exhibit AXMlI-5 
Page 7 of 47 

Comma Stock lrned Aecomalsted 
Capitslim OtbW 

Nnmbu Excoprof Retained c 

Dividends declared: 

Fanee at June 30,2006 $S,560 $ 1,013,901 S 4,012,799 $632963 S ' (103,713)$ 5 ,55522  I 
i 1 : ': SeeNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Exhibit AXMl1-5 
Page 8 of 47 XCEL ENERGY INC AND SUl3SlJlIARlES 

NOTES TO CONSOLLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDFFED) 

In the opinion of management the accompanying unaudited consolidated fmncial statements cktain all adjustments necessary to 
present fairly the financial position of Xcel Energy Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, Xcel Energy) as of June 30,2006, and 
Dec. 31,2005; the results of its operations and changes in stockholders' equity for the three and six months ended June F, 2006 and 
2005; and its cash flows forthe six months ended June 30,2006 and2005. Due to the seasonality of Xcel Energy's electric and natural 
gas sales, such interim results are not necessarily an appropriate base from which to project annual results. 

1. Significant Aceonnfiog Policies 

Except m the extent updated or desesibed Mow, the significant accounting policies set forth in Note 1 to the consolidated fmancial 
statements in Xcel Energy's Annual Repxt on Form 10-K for the year ended Dec. 31,2005 appropriately represent, in all material 
respects, the current status of accounting policies, and a n  mcorpomted herein by refmce. 

fintentent of Pinandol Accounting Stmdmdr (SFAS) No. 163 (Rorisui 2004) - 9hare Bused Payment" (SFAS Na la3@ - In 
.December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123R related io equity-based compensation. 
This statement replam the original SFAS No. 123 -"Aaxrunting for Stock-Based C6mpensation." Under SPAS No. 123R. 
companies are no longer allowed to account for their sherebased payment awards using the intrinsic value method, which did not 
require any expense to be recorded on stack options granted wirh an equal to or greater than f&ir market value exercise price. Instead, 
eqity-basad compensation arrangements will be measured and recognized besed on thegrant-date fair value using an option-pricing 
model (such as Black-Schdes or Binomial) that considers at least six factors identiiled in SFAS No. 123R. An expense related to the 
difference between the grantdate fair value and the purchase price would be recognized over the vesting period of the options. Under 
previous guidance, companies were allowed to initially estimate f o r f e i i  or recognize them as they actually occumd. SFAS NO- . 
123R requires companies to atimate forfeitures on the date of grant and to adjust that estimate. when information becomes available 
that suggests actual forfeitures will differ from previous estimates. W i s i w s  to f o r f i i  estimates will be recorded as a cumulative 
effect of a change in accounting estimate in the period in which the revision occurs. 

pmrious acDOunting guidance ailowd for compensation expense re~ated to ~hma-txsed'payment awards to be reversed ifthe target 
was not met However, under SFAS No. 123% compensation expense for shambasal paym+ awards that expire unexercised due to 
the company's faiure to reach a certain target stock price cannot be reversed. Any accruals made for X d  Energy's restricted stock 
unit award that was granted in 2004 and is based on a total shareholder return (TSR) cannot be reversed if the target is not met. 
Implementation of SPAS No. 123R is required for annual periods beginning after June 15,2005. Xcel Energy adopted the provisiow 
in the fm quarter of 2OO6. Since stock opdons had vested and otber awards were recorded at their fair values prior to impiementation 
of SFAS No. 123R, implementation did not have a material impact on net income or earning per share. Pro forma net income under 
SFAS No. 1 g R  for the quarter ended and year-to-date lune 30,2005 would not have been materially different tlian what was 
Worded. 

Smce the vesting ofthe 2004 restricted stock units is predicated on the achievement of a market d i t i o n ,  the. achievement of a TSR, 
the fair value used to calculate the expense related to this award is besed on the stock price on the date of grant adjusted for the 
uncertainty surrounding the achievement of the TSR Since the v&g of the 2005 and 2006 restricted stack units is predicated on the 
achievement of a performance condition, the achievement of an earnings per share or environmental measures target, fair values used 
to calculate the expense on thse plans are based on the stock price on the date of grant The performance share plan awards have been 
hisbnically settled plntially in cash and therefore do not quati@ as an equity award, but are accuunted for as a liability award. As a 
liability award, the fair value on which expense is based is  remeasured each period based on the m t  stock price, and tinal fxpense 
is based on the market value of the shares on Ux date the award is settled. Campensation expense related to share-based awards of 
approximately $13.9 million and $16.8 million was recorded in the sffond quarter of 2006 and 2005, reSpeetively. cornpensahon 
expense related to sharabased awards of approximately $21 .O millim and $1 9.6 million was recorded in the first six months of 2006 
and 2005, respectively. As of June 30,2006, there was appmximately $33.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to 
non-vested share-based compensation awards. Total unrecognized compensation expense will be adjusted for future changes in 
estimaZed forfeitures. We expect to recognize that ccm over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years. The amount of cash used to settle 
these awards was $1 1.3 million and $3.6 million for the first six months of 2006 and 2005, nspectiVely. 

There have been no material changes to outstanding stock options in the SeCoItd quarter of2006 

See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements in Xcel Energy's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dec. 31.2005 
for a descrlpdion of Xcel Energy's stock-based plans 

Metro IWsdonsRedudion Pmjed (MEW) Accounting - Allowance for funds used during eonstruCtion (AFLX) is an amount 
capitalized as a part of constfilction costs representing the wst of financmg the constnrction. Generally these costs are recovered tiom 
customen, as the related property is depreeiatea. The Minnesota Public Utilities Commission (MPUC) has approved a more current 
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Exhibit AXM11'4 
recovery of the financing costs related to the MERP. The in-service plant costs, including the financing costs during constructim, are 
recovered from customers through a MEW rider nsdting in a lower recognilion of AFDC. 

Page Of 47 

FASB Inferprel&*on No. 48 (FfN48) -In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -an 
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109'. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive fmcia l  statement model of how a company should 
recognize, measure, present, and disclose uncertain tax positions that the company has taken or expectg to take in its income tax 
returns. FIN 48 requires that only income tax barefits that meet the "more likely than not" recognition threshold be recognized or 
continne to be recognized on the effective date l n i i a l  derwgnition amounts would be reported as a cumulative effect of a change in 
accounting principle. 

FIN 48 is effective for f d  years beginning &er Dec. 15,2006. Xcel Enagy is assessing the impact ofthe new guidance on all of 
its open tax positions. 

RmI~ficu~ons-  Certain items in the statements of income, balance sheets and the statements of cash flows have been reclassified 
from prior-period presentation to conform to the 2006 preseritatiok These reclassifications had no effect on net income or earnings per 
share. Thereclassifications were primarily related to the presentation of Q u k  brp. (Quixx), a fonner subsidiary of Xcel Energy's 
nowregulated subsidiary, Utility J5ngineering 0, that partDns in cogenemtion projects, as diswntinued operations 

2. Discontinued Opemtions 

A summary of the subsidiaries presented as discontinued operations is discussed below. Results of operations for divested busiuesses 
and the results of businesses held for sale ~n reported for all periods plesented on anet basis as discontinued operations. In addition, 
the assets and liabilities of the businesses divested and held for sale in2006 and 2005 have been reclassified to assets and liabilities 
held for sale in the acwmpanying ConsolidattdBahce Sheets. 

Assets held for sale are valued on an asset-byasset basis atthe lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. In applying 
those provisions, management considered cash flow analyses, bids and offers related to those assets and businesses. Assets held for 
sale are not depreciated. AmoMts previously reported for 2005 have been restated to confom to the2006 discontinued operations 
presentation. 

Regulated Utility Segmeats 

During 2004, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell its regulated dechic and nahaal gas subsidiary, Cheyeme Light Fuel and 
Power Company (CLF&P). The sale was completed on Jan. 21,2005. 

Nonregulated Snbsldiaries - All Other Segment 

UiW@ Engineering- In March ZOOS, Xcel Energy agreed to sell UE to Zachry Group, Inc. (zachry). In April 2005, Zacbry acquired 
all of the outstanding shares of UE. Xcel Energy recorded an insignificant loss in the first quarter of 2005 as a result of the tran&ou 
In August ZOOS, Xcet Energy's board of dmtors approved management's plan to pursue the sale of Quixx, which was not induded in 
the sale of UE to Zachry. 

Seren - On Sept 27,2004, Xcel Energy's board of direetors approved management's plan to pursue the sale of Seren Innovations, 
Inc., a wholly owned broadband subsidiary. On May 25,2005, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell Seren's California assets to 
WaveDivision Holdings, L E ,  which was completed in November 200.5. In Jdy 2005, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell 
Seren's Minnesota assets to Charter Communications, which was completed in January 2006. 

NRG-InDecembef2003,XCel Ener~divesieditsownershipin~mNRGEntrgyInc.(NRG),aformer independentpower 
produchon subsidiary that had filed for bankruptcy protedon in May 2003. Cash flows from receipt of WRG-related deferred income 
tax benefits occuned m 2004 and 2005. Approximately $385 million of remaining deferred tax benefits related to NRG are classified 
as a component of discontinued operations assets listed below. 
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Summarized Pioaocial Results of Dkeontinued Operations 

Exhibit AXMIIS 
Page I O  of 47 

. .  
The major classes ofassets and liabilitia held for sale and related m discontinued operations are as follows: 

pnrslnda o f d d b )  LarWJ.ZM16 Dk31b1M)5 
i 

! i 

Noncurrent liabilities held for sale and related to discontitiued operationS S 4,852 $ 6,936 
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InferutsxpensC D&ctMl@ - As previously disclosed, in April 2004, Xcel Energy filed a lawsuit against theU.S. government in 
the U.S. Distnct Court for the District of Minnesota to establish h right to deduct the policy loan interest expense that had accrued 
during tax years 1993 and 1994 on policy loans wlated to its company-owned life insurance (COLI) policies that insuredcertain lives 
of employees of Public Service Company of Colorado (PSCo). These policies are owned and maaaged by PSR Investments, Inc. 
(PSRI), a wholly owned subsidiary of PSco. 

AAer Xcel Energy filed this suit, the IRS sent its two statutory notices of deficiency of tax, penalty and interest for taxable yean 1995 
through 1999. Xcel Energy has filed U.S. Tax Court petitions challenging those notices. Xcel Energy anticipates thedispute relating 
to its claimed inwest ex- deductions for tax years 1993 and later will be resolved in the refund suit that is pending in the 
Minuesota federal d i c t  court and the Tax Court petitions will be held in abeyance pending the outcome of the refund litigation. 
Xcel Energy has also been notified by the IRS that a statutory noiice of deficiency for tax years 2000 through 2003 will be issued in 
third quarter 2006. 

On Oct. 12,2005. the district court denied Xcel Energy's motion for summary judgment on the grounds that there were disputed 
issues of material fact that required a trial for resolution. At the same time, the dimkt court denied the government's motion for 
summaryjudgment that was based on its contention that PSCohad lackedan insurable interest in the lies of the employees insured 
under the COLI policies. Howeva, the dWct court granted Xcel Energy's motion for partial summuy judgment on the grounds that 
PSCo did have the requisite insmable in- 

On May 5.2006, Xcel Energy filed a second motion for summary judgment Oral argumk are scheduled to be presented on Aug. 8, 
2006. If this motion is denied, the district court has ordered the parties to be ready for trial by Jan. 5 2007. 
Xcel Energy believes that tlle tax deduction for interest expense on the COLI policy loans is in full compliance with the tax law. 
Accordingly, PSW has not recorded any provision for income tax or related interest or penalties that may be imposed by the IRS, and 
hty continued to take deductions for interest expense related to policy loans on its income tax returns for subsequent years. As 
discussed above, the ligation could muire several years to reach finat resolution. Defense of Xcel Energy's position may require 
significant cash outlays, which may or may not be recoverable h a  court prooeeding. Althougt~ the ultimate resolution of thi matter is 
uncertain, it could bave a material adverse &ea on Xcel Energy's fuuurcial position, results of operations and cash flows. . 

Should the IM ultimately preyail on this issue, tax and interest payable through Dec. 31,2006, would reduce retained earnings by an 
estimated $419 million. In 2004, Xcel Hnergy w i v e d  fonaal notification that the IRS will seek penalties. If penalties (plus 
associated interest) also are included, the total exposure through Dec. 31.2006, is approximately $497 million. xccl Energy annual 
earnings for 2006 would be reduced by approximately $44 million, a&r tax, or 10 cents per share. if COLI interest expense 
deductions were no longer available. 

4 Rates and Regolaletba 

Mdwest lndependenl2hnsmMm @stem Opermor, Inc (MISO) Operafions -Two of Xcel Energy's regulated utility 
subsidiaries, Northern States Power Company, a Minnesota corporation (NSP-?&mesota), andNorthem Slates Power Company, a 
Wixonsin corporation (NSP-Wiswnsin), are members of the MISO. The MISO is a regional transmission organization @TO) that 
provides transmission tariffadministration services for electric transmission systems, including those of N S P - M i n e h  and NSP- 
Wisconsin. In 2002,NSP-Minneso&.and NSP-Wisconsin received all required regulatory apprwals to transfer functional control of 
their high voltage (100 kilovolts and greater) transmission systems to tbe MISO. The hmS0 exercises functional control over the 
operations of these facilities and the facilities ofcertain neighboring electric utilities. On April 1,2005, MISO initiated a regional Day 
2 wholesale energy market pursuant to its transmission and energy markets tariff - 
While the Day 2 market is designed to provide efftciencits tbmugh region-wide generation dispatch and increased reliability, there are 
costs'associated with the Day 2 marker. NSP-Minnesota and NSP-Whnsin have attempted to address these costs With regulators in 
!heir respective jurisdictions as outlined Mow. 

On Feb. 24,2006, the MPUC ordered jurisdictional investor-owned utilities in the state, including NSP-MinneSota, to participate with 
the Minnesota Department of CammerCc and other parties in & pnpeding to evaluate suitability of recovery of some of the 
MISO Day 2 energy market &.in the variable fuel cost adjustment (FCA). The Minnesota utilities and 0th~ d e s  filed a joint 
report with the MPUC on June 22,2Q06 recommending pass-through of MISO emgy market costs in the FCA, with the exception of 
tw components which would be included in base retail electric rates in a future rate m e  upon a showing of MISO regional market 
benefits. The twocomponcnts are MIS0 Schedule 16, whieh recoups MISO costs for administration of financial traosplission nghts 
(FlRs); and Schedule 17, which recwps the cost of MIsO's marLet computer systems and staff. The W U C  has requested written 
comments on the joint report, and action by the MPUC h response to the recommendations in this report is anticipated sometime later 
in u#)6. An advene MPUC 
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On April 13,2006, inkmenon filed testimony regarding the Minnesotaelectric rate case. In its testimcny, the Minnesota Department 
of Commerce proposed an increase in annual revenues of approximately $90 million. a retun on equity of 10.64 percent and a 
proposed equity ratio of 51.37 perm resuiting in an overall retum on rate base of 8.81 percent. The primary sdjustments related to 
return on equity, nuclear decommissioning expense, ratemaking treatment of wholesale margins, adjustments to fuel expense and an 
increase in sales volumes. On the latter two issues the Department of Commerce indicated that the recommendations might cbange if 
NSP-Minnesota is able to supply additional information in its rebuttal testimony. Thc nuclear decommissioning recovery was reduced 
by $10.2 million and $21.1 million for the second quartex and first six months of2006, respectively. The annual recovery decreased 
from $80.8 million to $42.5 million. The decrease was attributed to a change in cost estimate and recovery pmmeters. 

The Office of Attorney General also filed testimony. It proposed two adjustments related to income taxes and wholesale margins that 
would result in a decrease in 2006 annual revenues of approximately $20 million. On March 30,2006, NSP-Minnesota filed rebuttal 
testimony reducing the requested rate increase to $156 million. Evidentiaq hearings concluded on April 27,2006. 

On April 24,2006, NSP-Minnesota reached a settlement agreement regarding the treatment of wholesale eleciric sales margins. The 
settlement is with five intervenor groups, including the Office &Attorney General and a large industrial customer group. 

The settlement resolves recommendatiom of most parties regarding the treatment of wholesale electric sales margins. Significant 
components of the settlement agreement are as follows: 

No credit to base electric rates for wholesale electric sales margjns; 
Wholesale electric sales margins derived from excess generation capacity will be flowed through the FCA as an offset to fuel 
and energy costs; 
80 percent of wholesale margins derived from the sales from NSP-Mirmesota's ancillary services obligations (e.g. spinning 
reserves) will be flowed through the FCA as an offset to fuel and energy costs and NSP-Mmes~ta will retain 20 percen; and 
25 percent of proprietary margins, sales that do not arise from the use of NSP-Mjnnesota generating assets* will be flowed 
through the FCA as an offset to fuel and energy costs, and 75 percent will be retained by NSP-Minnesota. 

The settlement agreement is pending approval by the MPUC and will be considered in the MPUC's determination of NSP- 
Minnesota's overall requested inaease. 

On July 6,2006, the administrative law judge (ALJ) recammended an overall imaeacie m revenues for the 2006 test year of 
approximately $135 million. For 2007, the AW recommended the increase be revised downward to $1 19 million to reflect the 
increased revenues expected due to therehun of Flint Hills, an oil refinery, as a W-requirements cwomer. The MPUC is expected 
to hold oral arguments in August and issue its f d  order in SeptMber 2006. 

Excekior&ergy - In December 2005, Excelsior Energy hc., an independent energy developer, filed for approval of a proposed 
power purchase agreement with NSP-Minnesota for its proposed integrated gas combined cycle (IGCC) plant to be located in northern 
Minnaota Excelsior Energy filed this petition pursuant to Minnesota law, which provides certain considerations for a qualifying 
Innovative Energy Project, subjectto MPUC public interest determinations. ExcelsiorEnergy asked the MPUC to open awntested 
case proceeding to: 

Approve, dsappve,  amend, or modi@ the terms and conditions of Bcekior Enerpy's proposed power purchase agreement; 
Defermine that Excelsior Energy's coal-fueled IGCC plant is, or is likely to be., a leastcost raouret, obligatng NSP- 
Minnesota to use the plant's generation for at least 2 percent of the energy supplied to its retail customers: and -. .. 
Determine that at least 13 percent of the energy supplied to NSP-Minnesota retail customers s h d d  come from the IGCC 
plant by 2013. 

The MF'UC refened this matter to a contested case hearing to develop the facts and issues that must be resolved to act on Excelsior's 
petition, including development of as much contract price information as possible. The contested case proceeding is scheduled to 
consider a 603 megawatt unit in phase I of the proceediags which an m t l y  underway, and considex a second 603 megawatt unit 
in phase Il of the pmceedings, which are scheduled to begin in 2007. A report from the Aws on phase I is expected in early 2007 and 
a report from the ALJs on phase 1I is eKpectcd in summer 2007. NSP-Idinnesota anlicipates opposing or seeking significant 
modification on Excelsior Energy's petition and power purchase agreement NSP-Minnesota will request that all costs associated with 
the proposed p o w  purchase agreement, if approved, will be recoverable in custom rates. 

W 2 0 M  Resource plan - On Nov. 1.2004, NSP-Minnesota tiled its propasat resounx plan for the pwMd 2005 through 2019. 
The propod plan identified needed resources and proposed processes for acquiring resources to meet those needs, which included 
the need for base load capacily begidning 2013. A Series of comments and replies ~ocuned on both the piuposed plan and the 
propad resonre. acquisition processes. On July 28,2006, the MPUC iWed an order that, among otherthings: 

- Approves N S P W i t a ' s  proposal to proceed with a request for pmposal for 136 megawatts of peaking ~esources with an 
intendd in service date of201 1; 
Identifies a base load resou~ce need of 375 megawatts beginning in2015 and requires NSP-Minnesotato file a certificate of 
need application for a proposed base load resource to begin the acquisition process by Nov. 1,2006, 

13 

25 



. .  

Exhibit AXMII-5 
%ires m-Minnesota to f ie  for any man4atory MPUC review or approvals of proposed upgrades to existing base load 
and nuclear power plants (Sherw. Prairie Island, and Monticello) by Dec. 31,2006; 
Approves an acquisition of 1,680 megawatts of wind generation mum over the planning period; and 
Accepts the proposed inaeases in demd4de  management and energy-savings goals. 
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Other Regulatory Matters - NSP-Wisconsin 

2006 Fuel cosl R e c m q -  NSP-Wisconsin's electric fuel costs for March 2006 were approximately $21 million, or 20 percent, 
lower than authorized in the 2006 Wisconsin electric rate case and outside the established fbel monitoring range under the Wiseonsin 
fuel ruler. Year-todate fuel costs through March were approximately $1.9 million, or 6 percent, lower than authorized, resulting man 
over m v e q  of $1.9 million. On May4,2006, tlte PSCW opened a proceeding to determine if a rate reduction (fuel credit factor) 
should be implemented, and made new rates reflecting the lower fuel costs effective May 4,2006, subject to refund pendw a full 
review of 2006 fuel costs. 

In late May2006, NSP-Wisconsin provided the PSCW with an updated forecast of fuel costs for the remainder of 2006 showing NSP- 
Wisconsin's fuel cost5 will be within the authorized range by year-end, and no rate reduction is warranted. The PSCW's investigation 
is ongoing. 

Fuel costs forthe Wisconsin retail jurisdiction through June 2006 were $0.8 million, or 1.0 k t  lower than authorized in the 2006 
rate case. However, NSP-Wisconsin's forecast continues to show that by year-end, fuel costs will be within the autfioriaed range. 
NSP-Wmnsin anticipaksthe PSCW will complete their investigation and issue an order later this year. 

Whderalc h e  C m  AppnCnHon -On Jdy 31,2006, NSP-Wisconsin filed a Section 205 rate case at the FEXC requesting a base 
rate increase of approximately $4 million, or 15 percent, for its ten wholesale municipal el&c sales customers The last rate 
inaease for these customers was in 1993. NSP-Wisconsin's wholesale customers are currently served under a bundled full 
requirements tar@ with rates based on embedded costs, and a monthly PCA. NSP-Wisconsin proposes to unbundle transmission 
service and revise the fuel wsis adjushnent clause (FCAC) to reflect current FERC regulatory policies, the advent of MISO operations 
and the Day 2 energy market. 

Other Regulatory Matters - PSCo 
PSCo EI&c Rafe Case - On Apnl14,2006, PSCo filed with the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to increase 
electricity rates by $210 million annually, beginning Jan. 1.2007. The request is b a d  on a return on equity of I 1  percent, an equity 
ratio of 59.9 perma and an electric rate base of 33.4 billion. No interim rate increase bas been implemented. A decision is scpected 
by the end of 2006. The cxpctcd procedural schedule is listed below; 

. 

htexvenor Testimony Aug. 18,2006 
RebultalTestimOny Sept 29,2006 
Hearings Oct 23,2006 through Nov. 9,2006 

- StatementofPosition Nov.20,2006 
Delihtions Dec. 1,2006 
hitiatDecision .Dee. 18,2006 . .  

PSCo 2W3 Rewurn Hm - On June 2,2006, PSCo filed a motion with tbe CPUC requesting permission to withdraw an earlier 
application.it made, which quested CPUC appmval to shorten the ten-year m o ~  acquisition period of its 2003 resource. plan by 
one year resulting in a nine year acquisition period (2004-2012). PSCo's original application also sought to reject all bids oering 
power supplies Starting in 2013 that itreceived in respomse to its Feb. 24,2005 all-source solicitation. On June 7.2006, the CPUC ' 

approved PSCo's motion and directed PSCo to complete the evaluation of bids and negotiation of contracts offering new power 
supplies shting in year 2013 by Dec. 15,2006. 

PSCo Renewable Porifdlo SlanLladq - In November 2004, an amhdment to the Colorado statutes was passed by referendum 
requiring implementadon of a renewable energy portfolia staadard for elenric service. The law requires PSCo to generate, or caw to 
be generated, a certain level of electricity from eligible renewable resources. During 2006, the CPUC determined that compliance with 
the renewable energy portfoli standard should be measured through the acquisition of renewable energy credits either with or without 
the accompanying renewable -,.that the utility pmhaser owns the renewable energy credits associated with existing contracts 
Mere the power purchase agrement is silent'on the issue; that Colorado utilities should be required to file implementation plans and 
the methods utilities should use for determmiig the budget available for renewable resources. in April 2006, the CPUC issued d e s  
that establish the process utilities are to follow in implementing the renewable energy portfolio standard. PSCo is scheduled to file its 
first annual compliand plan under these des by Aug. 31,2006. 

On Dsc. 1,2005, PSCo filed with the CPUC to implement a new rate rider that would apply to each cUst0l)ler's total electric ba 
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Page 15 of 47 providing approximntely $22 million in annual revenue (1.0 percent of total retail revenue). The revenues collected under the rider 

will be used to acquire sufficient solar generation resources to meet the requirements of the Colorado renewable energy portfolio 
standard. On Feb. 14.2006, PSCo and the other parties to the case fled a stipulation agreeing to reduce the rider to 0.60 percent The 
CPUC approved the stipulation on February 22,2006. The rider became &ective March I ,  2006. PSCo's compliance plan will 
address whether modification to the level of this rider is necesary to meet the requirements ofthe renewable energy portfolio 
standard. 

Psco Qua@ of Servlee Rlm - PSCo was required to make a filing regarding the hture of its quality of service plan (QSP), which 
expires iit the end of 2006. In the initial filing, PSCo proposed a swice quality monitoring and reporting plan. After reviewing the 
responses of the CPUC staff and other imervenors, PSCo negotiated a new QSP that will extend througb calendar year 2010. The plan 
establishes performance measures and provida for associated bill credits for failure to achieve regional eleCaic distribution system 
reliability, electric service continuity and restoration thresholds, customer complaints and telephone response times. Ifthe 
performance thresholds are not met, the annual bill credit exposures am approximately $7 million for regional reliability and $1 
million each for the continuity, reliability, customer complaints and telephone response time thresholds Each of PSCo's nine 
operating regions has its own calculated reliability metric and the bill creditswould be apportioned among the regions. PSCo would 
have to fail the operatinzz threshold two years in a row befm paying reliabiti bill credits. The bill credii levels w d d  not escalate. If 
the credits are required to be paid, the stated amounts would be grossed up for taxes. The proposed plan is pending CPUC approval. 

Cuntrolled Outage Invcstlgatton - On July 7,2006, the CPUC discussed a CPUC stafFreport warding its investigation of the 
controlled outages ofFeb. 18,2006, which affeued an estimated 323,000 customers in Colorado for approximately 30 minutes. The 
invdgation reviewed natural gas suppIy issues, the causes of unplanned outages on several PSCo+wned and independent power 
generatian facilities, transmission availability, customer intermptirm procedurw, emergency preparedness and internal and external 
communications. The CPUC nport made over90 recommendations and directed PSCo to respond wjthjn Two weeks with its plans to 
implement certain procedwes to address curtailment situations if they arise this summer. In addition, the CPUC directed PSCO to 
r e s p d  to various other reeommendatiom by the middle of August. The CPUC's recommendations are directed at ensuring mat there 
is an appropriate level of situational awareness between the operational status of the interdependent gas and electric supply systems so 
that adequate pipeline delivery pressures arc available during critical peak periods. 

Other Regulatory Matters - SPS 
SPS wholesale Raie Chq?l&ts- In November 2004, Golden Spread El&, Lyntegar Electric, Farmer's Electric, Lea County 
ElecItic, Central Valley Electric and Roosevelt COunty Electric, wholesale coopt ive  customers of SPS, filed a rate complaint at the 
FERC. The complaint alleged that SPS' rates fwwholesale service were exoessive and that SPS had incorrectly calculated monthly 
fuel cost adjushents using the FCAC provisions contained in SPS' wholesale rate schedules. Among other things, the complsinarus 
aserted that SPS was not properly calculating the fuel costs that are eligible for FCAC recavery to reflect fuel costs recovered from 
certain w h o l d e  sales to other utilities, and that SPS had inappropriately atlocated average fuel and purcbasea power costs to other of 
SPS' wholesale customers, effectively mising the fuel costs charges to complainants. Cap Rack enerBy Corporation (Cap Rock), 
anotbw full-requirementg customer, Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) and Occidental Permian Ltd. and Occidental 
Power Marketing, L.P. (Occidental) i m e n e d  in the pmceeding. Hearings on the complaint were held in February and Marcb 2006. 

On May 24,2006, a FERC AIJ issued an initial recommended decision in the proceeding The FERC will review the initial 
recommendation and issue a fmal order. SPS and others have filed exceptions to the Au's initial recommendation. FEW'S order 
may or may not follow any of the ALJ's recommendation 

In the recommended decisiin, the ALJ nsolved anumber of disputed cost of service issues and ordered a compliance filing to 
determine the extent to which base revenues recovered under currently effective rates for the Mod beginning Jan. 1.2005, through 
Jpne 11,2006 should be rehmded to whohale customers. The Aw also found that SPS should recalculate its FCAC billings for the 
period beginning Jan. I, 1999, to ducethe fuel and purchased power costs recovered from the complaining customers by allocating 
incremental fuel costs incurred by SPS in making wholesale sales of system firm capacity and associated energy to other firm 
customers at market-based rates during this period based on the view that such sales should be treated as opportunity sales. 

SPS believes the Aw has erred on significant and material issues that conhdict FERC policy or rules of law. Specifically, SPS 
believes, based on FERC rules and pncedent, that it has appropriately applied its FCAC tariff to the proper classes of customers. 
These sales were of a lon&-term duration under FERC preoadent and were made from SPS' entire system. Accordingly, SPS believes 
that the AU end in concluding that these transactions were opportunity sales. which require the assignment of incremental costs. 

The FERC has approved system average cost allocation treatment in previous filings by SPS for sales having similar service 
chamciemb 'cs and previously acmpted for fiiing certain of the challenged agreemenis with average fuel cost pricing. The ALJ failed 
to acknowledge e i k  factor. 
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in a retroactive amendment to the SPS FERGappved FCAC tariffprovisions. Under existing rules of law and FFRC regulations, 
the FERC may modifl a previously approved FCAC on a prospective basis. Accordingly, SPS believes it has applied its FCAC 
correctly and has sought review of the recommended decision by the FERC by fding a brief on the exceptions. 

Based on FERC's regulations and rules of law, SPS has evaluared all sales made from Jan. 1,1999, to Dec. 3 I ,  2005. 
Notwirhstanding that, SPS believes it should ultimately prevail in this proceeding. SPS has accrued approximately $7 million, of 
which $4 million was rewrded in the second quarter of 2006, related to both the base-rate and fuel items. However, ifthe FERC were 
to adopt the majority of the A U s  recommendations, SPS' r e l i d  exposure could be approximately $50 million. 

On Sept 15,2005, PMM fled a separate complaint at the FERC in which it contended that its demand charge under an existing 
interruptible power supply contract with SPS is excessive and that SPS has overcharged PNM for fueI costs under three separate 
agreements through erroneous FCAC calculations. P W s  arguments mirror those that it made as an intervenor in the cooperatives' 
complaint case, and SPS believes that they have M e  merit SPS submitted a response to PNM's complaint in October 2005. In 
November2005, the FERC accepted PNM's complaint In July 2006, SPS and PNM reached a settlement in principle. A final 
settlement agreement will be filed for FERC appmval. Hearings scheduled for December 2W6 will be held in abeyance. Based on the 
fact that many of these issues are already being reviewed by the FERC in the complaint case filed by the cooperatives discussed 
above, the current status and expeded outcome ofthis proceeding, SPS does not anticipate any additional liability. 

SPS Iylolrsale Power Base Rale Appllcatlon -On Dec. I ,  2005, SPS filed far a $2.5 million increase in wholesale power rates to 
certain electric cooperadves. 00 Jan 31,2006, the FERC conditionally accepted the proposed rates for filing, and set the $2.5 million 
power rate increase to become effectiVt on July 1,2006. subject to refund. The FERC also set the rate increase request for hearing and 
settlement judge procedures. The case is presently in the settlwnentjudge procedures and an agreanent m principle has been reached 
for base rates for the full-requirements cuJtDmers an4 PNM; other wholesale customers have not settled, however. The revised base 
rates were placed in effect July I ,  2006, subject to refund. 

SPP Energp hnbalufm Sed#- On June 15,2005, SPP, of which SPS is a member, filed pmposed tan'ff provisions to establish an 
Energy Imbalance Service (EN) wholesale energy market for the SPP region, using a phased approach toward the development of a 
fully-hctional locational marginal pricing energy market with appropriate FlXs, to be effeclive March 1,2006. On Sept. 19,2005, 
the FERC issued an OrderrejeCtinS the SPP EIS proposal and providing guidance and recommendations to SPP, however, the FERC 
did not require SPP to implement a full Day 2 market similar to MTSO. On Jan. 4,2006, SPP submitted propsed tariff revisions to 
implement an EIS market and establish a market monitoring and market power mitigation plan. On March 20,2006, the FEK issued 
an ordercOnaitionally accepting the proposed market, suspending the implementation until Oct. 1,2006. The FERC found the 
proposal lacking, particularly with respect to the hiring of an external market monitor, the loss compensation mechanisms and the lack 
of several staodard forms far service. The FERC directed SPP to implement safeguaraS for the first six months of yhe imbalance 
mkets including a two tier cap. a market readiness certification and price correction authority. SPP and market participants engaged 
in a seria o f  technical cmfexenca in order to comply with the FERCs order. On May 19,2006, SPP filed proposed tariff revisions 
pursuant to the FERcs J a ~ a r y  4th Order. Several parties Wed comments and protests to the SPP compliance filing, including SPS. 
SPP Wed an answer to the protests. On July 20,2006, the FERC accepted in part, and rejected in 
provisions, to become effective an Oct. 1,2006. On July 25,2006, SPP changed the implementation date to Nov. 1.2006. SPS has 
not yet requested New Mexico Public Regulation Commission (NMPRC) or Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUCT) approval 
regding accounting and ratemaking treatment of EIS costs. 

T e x a s h e r g ~ ~  Leglsfmion -The 2005 Texas Legislatun? passed a law, effective June 18,2005, establishing statutory author* for 
electric utilities outside ofthe Electric Reliability Council of Teras in the SPP or the Westem Electricity Coordinating Coumil to have 
timely recovefy of aansmission infraseucture invesnnents. After notioe and hearing, the PUCT may allow m v e q  on an annual basis 
of the reasonable and necessery expenditures for transmission infrastructure improvement costs and changes in wholesale transmission 
chargea under a tariff approved by the FERC. The PUCT will initiate a rulemaking for this process that is expected to take place m the 
second half of 2006. 

Fuel Cost Reeowry MechmW- Fuel and purchased energy costs are recovered in Texas through a lixed-fuel and purchased 
energy recovery factor, which is pan of SPS' retail electric lam. The Texas retail fuel factors change each Novanber and May based 
on the projected cost of natural gas. If it appears SPS will materially ovex-mover or under-rewver these costs, the factor may be 
revised based on application by SPS or action by the PUCF. In the first quarter of 2006, SPS revised its estimate of the allocation of 
fuel under-recoveries to its Texas jurisdiction for 2004 and 2005 and recorded an asset of apluoximatdy $7 million. In the e n d  
guarter of 2006, SPS f d i z e d  its fuel analysis based on a distribution system loss approach. Pursuant tothis analysis, the total 
unrecovered fuel t-dancc is $21.7 million. Btcause of unwtainw regarding nltimate recovery, a settlement reSene WBJ rewrded 
equal to the entire amount SPS filed a fikd reumciliion application m May 2006. See discussion below. 

SPS Texas RetmlFnd Fador Change - On March 1,2006, SPS filed an application to change its fuel factors 

SPP's proposed market 
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Page I 7  of 47 effective May 1,2006, to more accurately track fuel cost during the summer months. On April 17, 2006, the proposed factors were 

approved on an interim basis, and on May 25,2006, the factors were granted final approval. 

SPS Terns Retail Fuel Surcharga Case- On h4ay 5,2006. SPS requested authority to surcharge approx.hately $43.9 million of 
Texas retail fuel and purchased energy cost under-collection that accrued h m  October 2005 through March 2006. The case has been 
referred to the State Office Of Administrative Hearing (SOAH) for a contested hearing. Intervenors have requested that this case be 
consolidated with SPS’ pending fuel reconciliation case discussed below, since findings in the fuel reconciliation case could reduw 
the amount of the underal ldon.  At a pre-hearing conference on June 26,2006, the A U  denied the motion to consolidate and set 
the case for hearing on i ts merits on Aug 14,2006. 

SPS Terns RetaiZ BaseRate And FudRecon&liafion Case - On May 31,2006, SPS filed a Texas refail electric rate case requesting 
an increase in annual revenues of approximately $48 million, OT 6.0 percent. The rate f r i g  is based on a historical test year, an 
electric rate base of $943 million, a requested reiurn on equity of 11.6 percent and a common equity ratio of 51.1 percent Pial  rates 
are expected to be effective in the fust quarter of2007. No interim rate increase has been implemented. Following is the expected 
procedural schedule. 

Intervenor Testimony Oa. 24 & 31,2006 
PUCTStaf€Testhny Nov. 7,2006 

Proposal for Decision To be determined 
Agreed Junhdictional Deadlie March 2,2007 

0 Hearings NOV. 28 - Dec. 21,2006 

The fuel reconciliation portion requests approval of approximately $957 million ofTexas jurisdictional fuel and purchased power 
costs for the 2004 through 2005 period. The fuel reconciliation case was transferred to the SOAH with the bascrate case and has the 
Same procedural schedule. As a part ofthe fuel reconciliadon case, fuel and purchased energy costs, which are recovered in Texas 
through a fned-fuel and purchased energy recovery factor as a part of SPS’ retail elecbic rates, will be reviewed 

New Mexico Fucl R d e w  -On Jan. 28, ZOOS, the NMPRC accepted the staff petition for a review of SPS’ fuel and purchased power 
cost The staf€requested a formal review of SPS’ fuel and purchases power cost adjusbnent clause (FPPCAC) for the period of Oct 1, 
2001 through August 2004. The hearing in the fiel review case was held April 22,2006. A proposed rewmmended decision was fded 
by the @es on July 28,2006, and a NMPRC decision is atpened in late 2006. 

New M d c o  Fuel Factor Continualion Filing - On Aug. 18.2005, SPS filed with the NMPRC requesting continuation of the use of 
SPS’ FPPCAC and c m t  monthly factor cost recovery methodology. This tiling was required by NMPRC rule. Testimony has been 
tiled in the fsse by staff and intervenors objecting to SPS’ assignment of system average fuef costs to certain wholesale sales and thk 
inclusion of ineligible purchased power capcity and energy payments in the FPPCAC. The testimony also proposed limits on SPS’ 
future use of the FPPCAC. Related to these issues some intervenors have requested disallowances for past periods, which in the 
aggregate total approximately $45 million. Other issues in the case include the mtment of renewable en* certificates and sulfur 
dioxide allowance credit proceeds in relation to SPS’ New M m - 9  retail fuel and purchased powcr recovery clause. The hearing was 
held in April 2006, and a NMPRC decision is expected m late 2qo6. 

5. Commitments and ContJngent Liabilities 

.hironmentnl Contingencies 

xce~ ~nergy atxi its subsidiaries have been, or are currently invo~ved with, the cleanup of contamination ~ r o m  certain ha~ardous 
subsnu2ces at several sites. In many situations, the subsidiary involved is pursuing or intends to pursue insurance claims and believes it 
will recover some portion of these Costs throu&such claims. Additionally. where applicable, the subsidiary invohred i3 pursuing, or 
intends to pursue, recovery h m  other potenti@lly responsible parties and through the rate regulatory process. New and changing 
federal and state environmental mandates can also create added financial liabilities for Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries, which ire 
normally mmred through the rate regulatotory process. To the extent any costs are not recovered through the options listed above, 
Xcel Energy would be required to recognize an expense for such umecoyaable amounts in its consolidated hncial statements. 

Ashiand ManufacWed Gas PZml sHe--NSP-WisconSin was named a potentially responsible party (FW) for creosote and coal tar 
contamination at a site m Ashland, Wk. The Ashland site includes property owned by NSP-Wisconsin, which was previously a 
manufactured gas plant (MGP) faeilily, and two other properties: an adjacent city lakeshore p r k  area. on which an unaffiliated third 
patty previously operatea a sawmill, and an area of Lake.Superior’s Chequemegon Bay adjoining the park. The U.S. Bwironmental 
Protection Agency (FPA) and Wiseonsin Depamient of Natural Resources (WDNR) have not yet selected the methcd of remediation 
to use at the site. Until the EPA and the WDNR select a remediation strate.gy for the entire site and determine NSP-Wisconsin’s level 
of responsibility, NSP-Wisconsin’s liability forthe cost of mediating the Ashland site is not detennieble. NSP-Wiseonsin has 
recorded a liability of $25.3 million for its potential liability for mediating the Ashland site. Since NSP-Wisconsin cannot currently 
estimate the cost of remediating the Ashland site, the recarded liability is based upon the minimum of the estimated range of 
remediation costs, ushg information available to date and reasonably effective medial  methods. Ofthc total accrued, NSP- 
Wiswnsin recorded an additional $5.7 million io the second quarter 2006 to reflect estimated legal defense and additional work plan 
cwts. 

Regional Hare Rnles - The EPA requires states to develop implementation plans to comply with regional haze rules that require 
emission controls, known as best amiable retrofit technology (BAPT), by Jkcmber2007. States are required to identify the facilities 
that will have to reduce emissions under BART and then set BART emissions limits for: those facilities. Colorado is.the first state in 
Xcel Energy’s region to begin its BART rule development as the fust step towad the December 2007 deadline. Xcel Energy is 
actively involved in the stakeholder process in Colorado and will also be involved as other states in its service territory begin their 
process. On May 30,2006, the Colorado Air Quality C o w l  Commission promulgated BART regulations requiring certain major 
stationary sources m evaluate and h s M ,  operate, and maintain BART technology or an approved BART alternative to make 
reasonable progress toward meeting the national visibilii goal. On Aug. 1.2006, PSCo submitted its BART altematiw analysis to 
the Colorado A i  Pollution Control Division. As set forth in its nnalySis, PSCo estimates that implementation of the BART 
alternatives will cost approximately $165 million m capital cosp, which includes approximately $62 million in environmental 
u m e s  for the scistirrg Comanche Station project. Xcel Energy believes the cast of any required capital investment will be 
rewvmble from customm. Emissions controls will be installed between 2010 and 2012 and must be operational by 2013. 
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Minnesota has begun implementing its BART strategy as the first step toward the Decemh 2007 deadline. E%y SepL 10,2006, each 
BART-eligible source in Minnesota must perform and submi an analysis of the need for additional emission controls for SUtrUr 
dioxide (Soz) and/or nitrous oxide (NO,). The Sherbume County generating plant is the odyFX%-Minnesota facility that is reqired 
to perform such an analysis and may wentually be required to install additional emission controls. 

Uem Alr fnl&tzteRrcfe - In March 2005, the EPA issued the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAR). which further regulates SQ and 
NOxemissions. Under CAIR's capand-trade structure, utilities can comply through capital investments in' emission controls or 
purchase of emission "allowances" from other utilities making reductions on their systems. There is uncertainty concerning 
implenientation of CAlR States are required to develop implementation plans within 18 months ofthe issuance of the new rules and 
have asignificant amount of discretion in the implementation details. Legal challenges to CAR rules could alter their requirements 
andlor schedule.. The uncettainty associated with the f d  CAR  le^ makes it difficult to predict the ultimate amount and timing of 
capid expendmres and operating expenses. 

Xcel Energy and SPS advocated that West Texas should be excluded fmm CAR, because it does not conm%ute significantly to 
nonattainment with the fine particulate matter National Ambient Ai Quality Standard in any downwind juridiction. On July 11, 
2005, SPS, the C i  ofAmaril10, Texas and Oeeidental h i a n  LTD fded a lawsuit against the EPA and a request for reconsider@ion 
with the agency to exclude West Texas horn CAIR. El WSO Electric Co. joined in the request for reconsideration. On f i c h  15,2006. 
the EPA denied the petition for nconsideration. On June 27,2006, Xcel Energy and the other parties filed a petition for review of the 
denial of the petition for reconrideration, as well as a petition for review of the Federal Implementation Plan, with the United Stales 
Court of Appeals for the D b c i  of Columbia Circuit 

Based on the prelinary analysis of various Scenarjos of capital investment and allowance purchases, Xcel Energy currently believes 
the preferred scenario for SPS Win be capital investments d approximately $30 million for N(X controls with NO, allowanct 
purchases of an estimated $4 million in 2009. Annual purchases of So2 allowances are estimated in a e  range of $15 million to $25 
million each year, beginning m 2012 for Phase I based on allowance corn and fuel quality as of July 2006.. 

On June 13.2006. the Minnesota Pollution Congo1 Agency (MPCA) issued a draft rule for implementing the CAlRin Minnesota, 
which finlher regulates SOz and NO. emissions. This propoaal would require more stringent emission reductions than the Eden11 
CAIR pgmm, resulting in additional implementation casts. A stakeholder pmcess is. ongoing, and a proposed rule is exgected in 

While Xcel Energy wrpeca to comply with the new rules through a combination of addiinal capital investments in emission conlrols 
at various facilities and purchases of emission allowanw, it is continuing to review the alternatives. Xcel Energy believesthe cost of 
any required capital investment or allowance purchases will be recoverable from customers. 

.h&chl&atedlHphenyl (P#) Sorage aadDhposal--ln August2004. Xcel Energy received notice from the EPA contending 
SPS violated PCB stoxage and disposal regulations with respect to storage of a d r a i i  transformer and related solids. The EPA 
contended the fm forthe alleged violation was approximately SI .2 million Xed Energy contested the fine and submitted avohmtary 
disclasun to the EPA. On April 17,2006, SPS received a notice of determination f?om the EPA stating that the voluntary disclosure 
had been reviewed and &at SPS had met aI1 conditions of the EPA's audit policy. Accordingly, the EPA will mitigate 100 percent of 
thegravity-M penalty for the d k l d  violation, and no economic penalty will be assessed. 

C7& Alr Menrtg Rufe - In March 2005. the EPA issued the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR), which regulates rnemuy 
emissions from power plants for the iirst time. xce~ ~nergy continues to d u a t e  the smtegy for Complying with 
Compliance may be achieved by either addim macury controls or purchasing allowances or a combidon of both. The capital cost 
is e 8 t i d  at $29.3 million for tht tnacury control equipment Colorado is required to submit a plan to EPA by Od. 31,2006 to 
limit mercury emissions from coal-fired electric utility steam generating units consistent with fedaal spndards of performance. On 
June 6,2006, the Colorado Depamnent ofPublie Health and Environment issued a draft d e  for implementing CAh4R m Colorado. 
The propased rule provides for fewer mermry allowances than the federal program, which may result in additional implventation 
costs. A stakeholder process is ongoing, with a hearing before the Colorado Air Quality Control Commission currently scheduled for 
Nov. 1647,2006. 

Minneroia Mercrug Lcgislnlon - The Govcmor of Minnesota signed mercury reduction legisfation in 2006. This legislation 
requires the installation of mercury'monitoring equipment by July 1,2007; submittal ofmercnry emission reduction plans for dry 
scrubbed units by Dec. 31,2007 and for wet scrubbed units by Dec. 31,2009; and installation of mercury emission control equipment 
at NSP-Minngota's Allen S. Kingand Sherburne County ( S h )  generating facilities inMinnesota. Mepry  emission 00nWol 
equipmentmustbe installedonunit3ofShercoandatAllenS.KingbyDec.31,2009andDa. 31.2010. Shemounits 1 and2 
modifications ~ f e  wired by Dec. 31,2014. The cost of comls will be detwmined as part of the engineering analysis portion of the 
menmy nductlon plans and is not currently estimable. The legislation includes full and timely cost reeoyery provisions for both the 
wsts of complying with this statute and any f M  and state environmental regulations e f f d v e  after Dec. 31,2004. 

September 2006. 
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hwsuits and claims arise in the normal course of business. Managen~mt, after consultation with legal counsel, has recorded an 
estimate of the probable cost of settlement or other disposition of them. The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be 
determined. Accordingly, the ultimate resolution of these maaers could have a material adverse effect on Xcel Energy’s financial 
position and results of operations. 

i%zdufr Oil Corporation YS. eprime h c m d X c e l E n ~ ,  Znc. -On July IS, 2005, Sinclair Oil Corporation filed a lawsuit against 
Xcel Energy and its former subsidiary e prime in the U.S. DstFkt Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma, alleging liability and 
-damages forpurpoxted misreporting of price information for natural gas to trade publications in an effort to artificially increase natural 
gas prices. The complaint also alleges that e prime and Xcel Energy engaged m a conspiracy with other natural gaS sellers to inflate 
prices through alleged false reporting of natural gas prices. In response, e prime and Xcel Energy filed amotion with the Multi- 
District Lfigation (MDL) Panel to have the matter transferred to U.S. District Judge Pro and fded a second motion to dismiss the 
&suit. In response to this motion, this matter has been transferred to US. District Court Judge Pro. Judge Pro granted the motions 
to dismiss and plaintif€% have appealed. The P Circuit Court of Appeals has stayed this appeal until Novembkr 20,2006, pending the 
oomt’s decision in the prior appeal filed in Abelman An G l m  vs. e prime et al. 

J.J? Mor@ Trurr Cmpany vs. eprhc  and- Energy In& dnl. -On Oct 17,2005, J.P. Morgan, m its @pacity as the 
liquidating trustee for Farmland Indllstries Liquidating Trust, fded an amended mmplamt in Kansas state court adding defmdants, 
including Xcel Energy and e prime, to a previously fded complaint alleging mat the defendants Inaccurately reported natural gas 
trades to market trade publications in an effort to artificially increase natural gas prices. The lawsuit was removed to the U.S. District 
Court in Kansas and subsequently lrausfexred t0U.S. District Court Judge Pro in Nevada pursuantto an order from the MDL Panel. A 
motion to remand this case to state court bas been filed by plaintiffs and on March 2,2oOS,$1dge Fro granted plaintiffs’ motion for 
remand, but vacated this order on Marcb 8, ZOOS, and will give the matter further consideration. This case is in the early stages. there 
has.been no discovery, and eprime and Xcel Energy intend to vigorously d e f d  themselves against these claims. 

Mehopolitmz Airports Cormtlission vs. Northern States Power Compmy - On Dec. 30,2004, the Metropolitan Airports 
Commission (MAC) filed a complaint in Minnesota state district murt in Hennepin County asserting,that NSP-Minnesota is required 
to relimte EtcilitieS on MAC properly at the expense of NSP-Minnesota MAC daims that approximately $7.1 million charged by 
NSP-Minnesota over the past five yean for relocation COSLP should be repaid Both parties asserted cross motions for partial summary 
judgment on aseparate and less significant claim concerning legal obligations associated with rent payments allegedly due and owing 
by NSP-Minnesota to MAC for the use of its propeny for a substation that wes the MAC. A hearing regarding these cmss motions 
was held in January 2006. In F e w  2006, the court granted MAC’S motion on this issue, finding that there was a valid lease and 
that the past course of action between the parties required NSP-Minnesob to continue such payments. NSP-Minnesota had made rent 
payments for 45 y k .  Depositions of key witnesses took place in February, March, and April of U)M. The parties entered into 
meaningful settlement negotiations in May 2006, and such negotiations are ongoing. Trial remain$ for August ZOOS, but is likely 
to be continued due to ongoing negotiations. If settlement discwsions are not productive, additional summary judgment motions are 
likely prior to trial. 

H o f f i  M Norlkern Sfafes POIIer Compnnj -On Mareb 15,2006, a Purporttd class action complaint fded in Minnesota state 
district court, Hennepin County, on behalf of NSP-Minnesota’s residential customers in Minnesota, North Dakota and South Dakota 
for alleged breacb of a cohtrarmal obligation to maintain and inspectthe points of connection between.NSP-Minnmta’s wires and 
.customers’ homes within the meter box. Plaintifi claim NSP-Mmksota’s breach resule in an increased risk of tire and is in violation 
‘ o h B s  on frle with the MPUC. Plaintiffs seek injunctive relief and damages in an amount equal to the value of inspections plaintiffs 
claim NSP-Minnesota was required to perform over the past six years. NSP-Minqesotahas filed a motion for dismissal on the 
pleadings. scheduled to be heard on Augusr 16,2006. 

C0mer.v~. Xcd Energy Inc et aL - On April 25,2006, Xcel Energy received notiee of a purported class action lawsuit filed in US. 
District Court for the Southern District of Mississippi. The lawsuit names mo= than 45 oil, chemical and utility companies, including 
Xcel Energy, as defendants and alleges that defendants’ carbon dioxide emissions ”were a proxiete and direct caw of the increase 
in the destructive capacity of Hurricane Katrina.” Pkintiffs allege in support of their claim, several legal theories, including 
negligence, and public and private nuisance and seek damages related to %hurricane. Xcel energYbelieves this lawsuit is without 
merit and intends to Vjgorously defend itself agiinst these claims. On July 19,2006, Xce) Bnergy filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit 
in its entirety. 

Bender el aL ys XcelEne& - On July 2,2004, five former NRG officers filed a lawsuit against Xcel Energy h the US. District 
Court for the District of Minnesota. The lawsuit alleges among othm things, that Xcel Energy violated the Employee Retinment 
Income Security Act of 1974@RISA) by refwing to make certain defemd compensation payments to the plaintiffs. The complaint 
also alleges interfkrev with ERISA bend@, breach of conh’aet related to the nonpayment of certain stock options and unjust 
enriclnrient The complaint alleges damages of approximately $6 million. X d  Energy believes the suit is without merit On JM. 19, 
2005, kl Energy filed a motion for summary judgment. On July 26,2005, the court issued an order gmnting Xcel Energy’s motion 
for slimmery judgment in part with respect to claims for interference with ERISA benefits, breach of contract for nonpayment of stock 
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options and unjust ewiehment ’The court denied Xcel Energy’s motion in part with nspect to the allegations of nonpayment of 
defwred compmation benefits. Plaintiffs and Xcel Enexgy have fded additional cross motions for summary judgment, with oral 
arguments presented on Feb. 24,2006. 

On May 17,2006, the court gran?ed Xcel Energy’s motion for summary judgment in full and denied the plaintiff’s motion for 
summaryjudgment in full. PlaintifE bave filed notice o f  intent to appeal to the US. Court ofAppeals for the EigMb Circuit 

~ O M c h e 3  Pennilti~gmiun -On Aug. 4.2005, Ciums for Clean Air and Water in Pueblo and Southern Colorado and Clean 
Energy Action filed a complaint against the Colorado Air Pollution Conml Division alleging that the Division impropxly granted 
permits to PSCo under Colorado’s Prevention of Significant Deterioration program for the construction and operation of Comanche 3. 
PSCo intervened in the cm. On June 20, Zoos, the court ruled in PSCO’s favor and held that the Comanche 3 permits had been 
properly granted and plaintiffs’ claims to the contrary were without merit It is uncertain whether plaintiffs will appeal. 

BreekenridgeBrwrawery vs. eprime andXcelEnergy Iuc et aL -In May. 2006, Breckenridge Brewery, a Colorado corporation, filed 
a complaint in Colorado State D i i c t  Court for the City and County of Denver alleging that the defendants, including e prime and 
Xcel Energy, unlawfully prevented tidl and free competition in the trading and sale of natural gas, or conlroliedthe market price of 
natural gas. and engaged in a conspiracy in constraint of trade. Notice of removal to federal court on behalf of Xcd Emgy Inc. and e 
prime, Inc. was filed in June 2006. On July 6,2006, the Colorado State Dmki Court granted an enlargement of time within which to 
file a pleading in response to the complaint. Plaintiffs have filed a motion to remand the matter to state court. 

Nmbfech PS Norlkern slorw Power Cmpmy - On May 16,2006, NewMech served and filed a complaint against NSP- 
Minnesota, Southem Mi~esota Municipal Power Agency (SMMPA), and Benson Engineering in the Minnesota State District Court, 
Sherbume County, alleging entitlement to payment in the amount of approximately $42 million for unpaid costs allegedly associated 
with construction work done by NewMech at NSP-Mi~esota and SMMPA’s jointly owed Sheno 3 generating plant in 2005. 
NewMech had previously served a mechanic’s lii and seeks, through this action, foreclosure ofthe lien and safe of the property. 
NewMech additionally seeks the claimed damages as a result of an alleged breach of contract by NSP-Miesota NSP-Minnesota,- 
SMMPA and Benson have filed answers denying NewMech’s allegations. Additionally, NSP-Mm-ota and SMMPA have 
counterclaimed for damages in excess of $7 million for breach of contract, delay in contract performance, misrepresentation and . 
fraudulent inducement to enter into the contract, and slander of title. 

ZkpyfmW of Labor A u a -  In 2001, Xcel Energy received notice from the U.S. Depamnent of Labor (DOL) Employee Benefit 
Sean@ Administration tbat it intended to auditthexcel Bnergv pension plan. After multiple on-site meetings and intaviews with 
Xcel Energy personnel, the DOL indicated on Sept 18,2003, that it is prepared to take the position that Xcel Energy, as plan sponsor 
and through its delepate, the Pension Trust Administration Committee, breached B fiduciary duties under ERISA with respect to 
certain investments made in limited partnmhips and hedge funds in 1997 and 1998. The DOL has offered to conclude the audit if 
X a l  EnerEy is willing to contribute to the plan the MI amount of losses 6urn the questioned investments, or approximately $7 
million. On JuIy 19,2004, Xcel Energy fonnally responded with aletterto the DOL that asserted no fduciary violations have 
mmd and extended an offer to meet to dmm the matter further. In 2005, and again in January 2066. the DOL submitted two 
addition+ requests for information related to the investigation, and Xcel Energy submitted timely responses to each request 

On June 12,2006, the DOL issued a let@ to the Xcel Energy Pension Trust Administration Committee indicating that, although there 
may have been a breach ofthe Committee’s fiducky obligations under ERISA, the DOL will not pursue any aetion against the 
Committee or the pension plan with respect to these alleged breaches due, in part, to the steps the Committee has taken in outsourcmg 

Curbon Dtdde  E-ions Lmvsuil- On July 21,2004, the attorneys general of eight states and New York City, as well as several 
environmental groups, filed lami@ in US. District Court for the Southern District of New York against five utilities, ineluding X d  
Energy, to force reduction8 in carbon dioxide (a) emissions. The 0 t h  utilities indude American Electric Power Co., Southern 
Co.. Cinergy Corp. and Tennessee Valley Authority. CO2 is mitoed whenever fossil fuel is combusted, such as in automobiles, 
industrial opemtions and wal- or gas-fued power plants. The lawsuits allege that C02 emittad by each company is a public nuisance 
as d e f d  undw state and federal common law because it has contributed to global warming. The lawsuits do not demand monetnry 
.damages. Instead, the lawsuits ask the court to order each utility to cap and reduce its C02 emissions. In October 2004. Xcel Energy 
and four other utility companies Bled a motionto dismiss the lawsuit, contending, among other reasons, that the lawsuit is an attempt 
to usurp the policy-setting Tole of the US. Congress and the president On Sept. 19.2005, the judge Wnted the defendants’ motion to 
dismiss on consIiMional grounds. Plamtiffs filed an appeal to the Second Circuit oral argumenb were presented on June 7,2M)6 and 
a decision on the appeal is pending. 

Other Contingencies 

The CiTcumstanCes set forth in Notes 13,14 and 15 to the consolidated fjnancial statements in Xcel Enmgy’s Annual Report on Fom 
10-K for the year ended Dec. 31.2005 and Notes 3,4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements in this Quarterly Report on 

, 

’ 

. 

. 

certain investment management and administration fimctions to third parties. . .  
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Form l0-Q appropriately represent, in alI material respects, the current status of o&er commitments and contingent liabilities. 
including h e  regarding public liability for claims resulting from any uudear incident, and are incorporated herein by reference. The 
following include unresolved contingencies that are material to Xcel Energy’s financial position: 

Tax Matters - See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements for discussion of exposures regarding the tax deductibility 
of corporate-owned life insurance loan int- and 

Guarantees --See Note 6 to the consolidated furancial statements for discussion of exposures under various guarantees. 

6. Short-Term Borrowings and Other Financing Instruments 

Short-Term Borrowings 

At June 30, ZOOa, Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries had 5138.0 million of short-term debt outstanding at a weighted average yield of 
5.43 percent 

Gnarantees 

Xcel Energy provides various guarantees and bond indemnities supporting certain of its subsidiaries. The guarantees issued by Xcel 
Energy guarantee payment or pertormance by iffi subsidiaries under specified agreements or transacb’ons. As a result, Xcel Energy’s 
expome under the guanmtees is based upon the net liability of the relevant subsidisry under the specified agreements or transactions. 
Most of the guarantees issued by Xcel Energy limit the exposure of Xcel busy to a maximum amount stated in the guarantees. On 
June 30, Zoos, X d  Energy had issued guarantees of up to $71.5 million with no known exposure under these guanmtees. In addition. 
Xcel Energy provides indemnity protection for bonds issued for itself and its subsidiaries. The total amount of bonds with this 
indemrkil.youtstanding as of June 30,2006, was approximately $1332 million. The total exposure of this indemnification cannot be 
determined at this time. Xcel Energy believes the exposure to be significantly less than the total amount of bonds outstanding. 

7. Derivative Valuation and Flaanchl Impacts 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries use a number of different derivative instruments in connection with their utility commodiiy price, 
interest rate, short-term wholesale and commodity trading activities, incfuding forward contacts, fu- swaps and options. All 
derivative instruments not qualifying for the normal purchsses and normal sales exception, as Mined by SPAS No. 133- 
“Accounting for Derivative lnstnunents and Hedging Activities,“ are recorded a~ fair value. The presentation of these derivative 
instruments is dependent on the designation of a qualifying hedging relationship. The adjustment ta fair value of derivative 
instruinenffi not designated in a qualeing hedging relationship b refkled in current earnings or as a regulatory balance. This 
classification is dependent on the applicability of any.regulatory mechanism in place. This includes certain instruments used to 
mitigade market risk for the u t i l i  operations and all rnstrumen ts related to the commcdity trading operations. ’The designation of a 
cash flow hedge pennits the classifieation of fair value to be recorded within Other Comprehenkive Income, to the extent effective. 
The designation of a fair value hedge permits a derivative instrument’s gains or losses to offset the related results of the hedged item 
in the Consolidated Stateme.nts of Income. 

. 

Xcel Energv records the fair value of its derivative instrumems in its Consolidated Balance She& as separate line items identified as 
Derivative Inscnunents Valuatioll in both m n t  and noncurrent assets and liabilities. 

The fair value of all intenst rate swaps is determined througb counterparty valuatiorq internal valuations and broker quotes. There 
have been no material changes in the technique9 m models used in the valuation of interest rate swaps during the periods presented. 

Qualifying hedging relationships are designated as either a hedge of a forecasted transaction or funne cash ffow (cash flow hedge), or 
a hedge of a recognized asset, liability or fm eammibnent (fair value hedge). The types of qualifying hedging transactions in which 
Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are currently engaged are dmssed below. 

Cash Flow Hedges 

X c e l k  and its subsidiaries ente.r into derivative irrstruments to manage variability of future cash flows ffom changes m 
commodity prices and interest ram. These derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedges for accountin$ purposes, and the 
changes in the fair value of these instruments are recorded as a component of Other Comprehensive Income. 

At June 30,2006, xcel Energy amd its utility subsidiaries had various uwnmodity-nlated mntracts designated as cash flow hedges 
exteding h u g h  2009. The fair value of these cash flow hedges is Tccorded in either Other Comprehensive Income or deferred as a 
regulatory asset or l i i i .  This classincation is based on the regulatory recovery mechanisms m place. Amounts deferred in these 
accounts are recorded in earnings as the hedged purchase or sales transaction is settled. Thii could incluck the purchase or sale of 
ene%y or eriergy-rehted products, the use of natural gas to generate electric energy or gas purchases for resale. As of June 30,2006, 
Xcel Energy had no amounts in Aoeumulated Other Comprehensive Income related to commodity cash flow hedge contracts that are 
expeded to be rec~gnized in earnings during the next 12 months as the hedged bansactiom settle. 
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obligations or effectively fix the yield or price on a specified benchmark inkrest rate for a specific period. These derivative 
inshuments are designated as cash flow hedges for accounting ptlrposes, and the change in the fair value of these instruments is 
recorded as a component of Other Comprehensive h m e .  As of June 30,2006, Xcel Energy had net gains of approXimately $2.7 
million in Accumulated Other Comprehensive h m e  related to interest rate cash flow hedge contracls that are exwed to be 
recognized in earnings during the next I2 months. 

Gains or losses on hedging transactions for the sales of energy or energyrelated products are recorded as a component of revenue, 
hedging transactions for fuel used in energy generation are recorded as a component of fuel costs, hedging transactions for gas 
purchased for resale 
interest expensa Cenain utility subsiiiaries are allowed to recover in electric or gas rates the costs of certain fiancid instruments 
purchased lo reduce commodity cost volatility. Thae was no hedge ineffectiveness in the second quam of 2006. 

The impact of qualifying cash flow hedges on Xcel lhrgy's Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, included in the 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income, is detailed in the followmg tabk 

recorded as a component of gas ~ s t s  and interest rate hedging transactions are recorded as a component of 

i 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to cash flow hedges at June 30 S 19.5 S (22.4) 

Acmnutated other comprehensive income (loss) related (0 cash flow hedges at lune 30 I 195 $ (22.4) 

Fair Value Hedges 

The effective portion of the change in the fair value of a derivative instrument qualieing as a fair value hedge is offset against the 
change in the fair value of the underlying asset. liability or firm commitment being hedged That is, fair value heage amunting allows 
the gains or losses of the. derivative instrument to affset, in the m e  period, the gains and losses of the hedged item. 

Derivatives Not Qnal i ihg  for Hedp Accounting 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries have commodity trading operatim that enter into derivative instruments. These deriMtive 
inswuments are. ~.cc~uted for on a mark-to-market basii in the Consolidated Statemens of I n m e .  The resulb of these tnmsactions 
are recorded on anet basis within Operating Revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries also enter into cenain commodii-based derivative mans;rctions, not included in trading operations, 
whicb do not qualify for hedge accounting tnatment These derivative instruments are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis in 
aaordance with SFAS No. 133. 

Normal Purchffef or Normnl Sales Contracts 

Xcel Energy's utility subsidiaries enter into contracts for the purchase and sale of various commodities for use in their business 
operations. SFAS No. 133 requires acompany to evaluate these contracts to detennine whethe the contracts are derivatives. Certain 
contracts that literally meet the defmition of a derivative may be exempted from SFAS No. 133 as normal pwchases or normal sales. 
Normal prrrchases and m a l  sales are contracts that provide fortbe purchase or sale of somethi other than a fmcial or derivative 
instnunent that will be delivend in quantities expeued to be used or sold over a reasonabie period in the normal course of business. In 
addition, normal purchases and normal sales contracts must have a price based on an underlying that is clearly and closely related to 
the anet being purchased or sold. An underlying is a specitled interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, 
index of prices or rates, or other variable, including the occurrence or nonoccurrence of a specified event, such as a scheduled payment 
under a contract 
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Exhibit AXMII-5 
Page 23 of 47 Xcel Energy evaluates all of its contracts when such contracts are entered to deternine if they are derivatives and, if so, if they qualify 

to meet the m a l  designation requirements under SFAS No. 133. as amended. None of the contracts entered mto within the 
commodity trading operations quali@ for a normal desigHation. 

In 2003, as a result of FASB Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. (20, Xcel Energy began recording several long-term power 
purchase agreements at fair value due to accounting requirements retated to underlying price adjushnents. As these purchases are 
recovered through normal regulatory recovery medmnisms in the respective jurisdictions, the changes in fair value for these contracts 
were offset by regulatory assets and liabilities. During the first quarter of 2006, Xcel Energy qualified these contraas under the normal 
purchase exception. Based on this qualification, the contracts will no longer be adjusted to fair value and the previous carrying value 
of these contracts will be amortized over the remaining contrad lives dong with the offsetting regulatory balances. 

Normal purchases and n o d  sales coatraas are accounted for as executory contracts as required under other generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAM). 

8. Detail of Interest and Other Income (Jlxpense) -Net 

Interest and other income, net of nonopemthg expenses. for the three and six months ended June 30 wnsisted of the following: 

Thrac moolb eaded 
Jom 30. 

f lhnsandr of Dollrrs) 2 ? ! L 2 E L  

Total interest.aod other'income- net . -- 0 921 ' $  4,516 

$ 537 E 
pI.69 

Total imerestandotherincome-net 
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9. Common Stock and Equivalents 

XceI h&y has common stock equivalents consisting of convertible senior nates and stock options. The dgutive impacts of wmmon 
stock equivalents affected earning per share as follows for rhe three and six months ending June 30,2006 and 2005: 

Tbm months add June 30.2006 Three aonlbs d e d  June Jo. 200s 
Per-share Pmhur 

10. Jjendt Plans and Other Pos!r&remult Jhnetlts 

Components ofNet Periodic BeneIlt Cost 

lbra mwlbs ended J w  3& 
z o o d 2 0 0 9 ~ ~  l%#s 

Pasbctiran-t nalth 

$ 505 $ (3,051) $ 17,536' S 19,528 - Net benefit cost (credit) recogniped for financial reporting 
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11. Segment Information 

xcel Energy has the following repoxtable segments: Regulated Electric Utility, Regulated Natural Gas Utility and All Other. 
Commodity trading operatiom performed by regulated operating cumpanies are not a reportable segment Commodity ming results 
are included in the Regulated Electric Utility segment 

Natunl Gu AD lbxmil i ie coprolldalcd Rmoted 
Other J3limmafiom Total fnwunands dDellPn) U d l b  U I i l i i  
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Page 26 of 47 Item 2. MANAGEMENTS DlscuSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 

The following discussion and analysis by ma&ment focuses on those factors h t  had a material effect on Xcel Energy's financial 
condition and results of opcrStions during the periods presented. or are expected to have a material impact in the future. It shodd be 
read in conjunction with the au;omI#mying unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes. 

Except for the hisiorical statem& contained in this report, the matters discussed in the fo1lowing discussion and analysis are 
fonvanfIoddng statements that are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Such forward-looking statements are 
intended to be identified in tbis doarment by the words "anticipk,'"'estimate," "expect,""objective," "outlook" 'projwd," 
"possible;" wtential" and similar expressions. Actual results may vary materially. Factors that could c8us8 actual results to differ 
materially include, but are not limited to: 

Economic conditions, including innation rates, monetary fluctuations and theii impact on capital expenditurq 

The risk of a significant slowdown in growth or decline in the U.S. economy, the risk of delay in growth recovery in the U.S. 
economy or the risk of inaeased cost for insura~ce premiums, security and other items as a consequence of past or fime 
twrorist attacks; 

Trade, monetary, f d ,  taxation and environmental policies of governments. agencies and similar organizations in geographic 
areas where Xcel Energy has a f m c i a l  interest; 

Customer businesl conditions, including demand for their products or services and supply of labor and materials used in 
creating their products and services; 

Financial orregulatory accounting principles or policies imposed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and similar entities with regulatory oversight; 

Availability or cost of capaal such 85 changes in: interest rates, market pwcepdona of the utility idusby, XDA Energy or any 
of its subsidimks; or security ratings; 

Factors affecting utility and nonail* operations such as unusual weather conditions; catastrophic weatherdated damage; 
unscheduled genexation outages, mamtenanCe OT repairs; unanticipated changes to fossil fie4 nuclear fuel or natural gas supply 
costs or availability due to higher demand, shortages, transpomtion problems or other developments; nuclear or mvimnmental 
incidents; or electric transmission or gas pipeline constramts; 

Employee workfaroe factors, including loss or retirement of key executives, collective bargaining agreements with union 
employees, or work stoppagw, 

Increased competition in &e utility industry or additional competition in the markets served by Xcel Energy and its 
subsidiaries; 

State, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiativesthat affect cost and investment recovery, have an impact on rate 
structures and affect the speed and degree to which competition enters the electric and naluml gas markets; industry 
reshucturing initiatives, tnursmission system operation and/or administration initiatiucs; recovery of investments made under 
traditional regulation; nature ofcornpaitas entering the industry; retail wheeling; a new pricing stiuUure; and former 
customers entering the generatioa market; 

Rate-setting polick or procedures of regulatory entities, including environmental externalities, which are values established by 
regulators assigning environmatal costs to each method of electricity generation when evaluating generation resource options; 

Nwh,reguhtory policies and procedum, including operating regdations and spent nuclear fuel storagq 

Social attitudes regarding the utility and power industries; 

Risks associated with thc California power and other westem markets; 

Cost and other effects of legal and administrative proceedin= settlements, investigations and claims; 

Technological developments that result in competitive disadmtages and create the potential for im-nt of existing assets; 

Risks associated with implementations of new technologies; 

Other business or investment dde-rations that may be disclosed from time to time in X-I Energy's SIX fdings or in other 
publicly disseminated Written docments; and 

The other risk factors listed frwo time to time by Xcel Energy in reports filed with the SEC, including Risk Factors in Itan 1A 
ofXcel Energy's AnnualReportonFonn I~KfortheyearendedDec.31,2005aadExbibit99.01 tothisreportonForm l0-Q 
for the quartex ended June 30,2006. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Summary of Financial Ilesalts 

The following table SUmmafLes the earnings contributions of Xcel Energy’s business segmeats on the basis of GAAP. continuing 
operatiom d s t  of the following: 

regulated utility subsidiaries, operating in the electric and nahual gas segments; and 
several nomguhicd subsidiaries and the holding company, when corporate financing activity occurs. 

Discontinued operatiom consist of the following: 

Quixx, which was classified as held for sale in the third quarter of 2005 based on B decision to divest this investmenS 
VE, which was sold in April 2005; 
Seren, a portion of which was sotd in Novembes 2005 with the remainder sold in January 2006; and 
CLFBtP, which was sold in January 2005. 

Prior-year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the curren~ year presentation and classification of certain 
operab’ons as discontinued. See Note 2 to the consolidated fhmcial statements for a further discussion of discontinued operations. 

Exhibit AXM1-l-5 
Page 27 of 47 

f 

! . .  , .  

(a) Not a reportable segment. Includedin All Other segment results in Note 1 1  to tbe consolidated financial statements. Other 
utility results, included in the eamiagJ conm%ution table above, include certain subsidiaries of the utility operating 
companies that conduct mmwiiity activities. The largest of these other utility businesses is PSRl, a subsidiary of Psco that 
owns and manages lik insurance policies fix Psco anploycts and ntireea 

21 

39 



Exhibit AXMII-5 
Page 28 of 47 The foIlowiiag table swmnarizes significant components wnbiiuting lo &e h g c s  in the three months and six months ended June 

30,2006 earnings per sham compsred with the same period in 2005, which am discussed io more detail later. 

Lower efEeaive tax rate and ather 0.03 0.04 

Utility Segment Results 

Earnings for the sccond quarter of 2006 increased primarily due to stronger hase e W c  and natural gas utility margins, partially 
OW by Iowm shoa-term wholesale margins. The stronger utiiity margins include the w i v e  impact of a natural gas rate. increase in 
Colorado, an electric and natural gas rate increase in Wisconsin. an interim electric rate increase in Minnesota and revenue associated 
with the MERP. 

The following summarizes the estimated impact of weather on regdated utility earnings pa &are, based on estimated temperature 
variations from historical averages (excluding the impacl on commodity trading operations): 

Six months ended June 30 $ (0.01) $ (0.00) $ (0.01) 

Other Results -Holding Company and Other Costs 

Finuncing Carts and Preferred Dividuuts -Holding company results inchrde interesl expense and preferred dividend costs, which 
are incurred at the Xcel Energy and intermediate holding company levels and are not directly assigned to individual subsidaties. 

Discontinued Operations 

~~~- U@y Segments - During 2004, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell its regulated elecbic and natural gas 
subsidiary. W & P .  The sale was complaed in January 2005. 

DiseOniiued--AIl Ofher- In March 2005, Xcel Energy agreed lo sell its nor-regulated subsidhy, UE to Zmhry. 

In August 2005, Xcel Enagy’sboard oEdirectors approved management’s plan to pursue the sale of Quixx Corp., a former subsidiary 
of UE that partnem in cogetlerazion projects, that was not included in the sale of UE to Zachry. 

On Sept. 27,2004, Xcel Fkexgy‘s board of directors approved nmageumt’s plan to pursue the sale of Sera,  8 wholly owned 
broadband communications scrvioes subsidiary. Sercn delivers cable television, high-speed Internet and telephone Service. In 
November 2005, Xccl hugy sold h ’ s  California assets to WaveDivision Holdings, UC. In January 2004 Xcel Energy sold 
Seam’s Minnesota assets to charter Communications. 

Income Statement Analysis - Sccond Quarter 2006 vs. Second Quarter 2005 

Electric UtUty, Short-term Wholesale and Camnodily Trading Margins 

Electric fuel and pmchssed powg expmses tend to vary with changing r e i 1  and wholesale sales requirements and unil cost changes 
in fuel and purchaxd power. Due to @el and purchased rangy ccst-ncovery mechanisms for retail customerr) in several most 
fluctuations io the-se costs do not m a t d l y  a f k a  electric utility margin. 
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Exhibit AXMII-5 
Page 29 of 47 Xcel Energy has two distinct forms of wholesale sales: short-term wholesale and commodity trading. Shoxt-term wholesale refers to 

enexgy-related purchase and sales activity, and the use of certain f i i i a l  insmunen ts associated with ihe fuel requid for, and 
cnagy p m d d  from, Xcd Energy's generation assets or he energy and capacity purchased to serve native load. Commodity tradmg 
is not associated with Xcel Energy's genmtion as- or the energy and capacity purchased to sem native load Short-term 
wholesale and commodity trading activities are considered put of the electric utility segment. 

Short-term wholesale and commodity ITading margins reflect the estimated impact of replamy sharing of realizedmargins, if 
applicable. Commodity -ding revenues are reporled net of related costs @e., on a margin basis) in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. Commodity d i n g  cos$ i x M e  purchased power, transmission, broker f= and other related usis. 

The following table details the revenue and margin for base elearic utility, short-term wholesale and commodity trading activities. 

Short-term wholesale and commodity trading margins decreased approximately $43 million for the second q w t a  of 2006, compared 
with the smneperlod in 2005. As expected, short-knn margins k t i i e d  due to retail sales p~owth, which reduced surplus generation 
available for sale in thewholesale market, and decreased opportunities to sell due to the MlSO centraIk3 dispatch market. In 
addition, during the second quartex of 2006 a $6 million charge was recorded to commodity trading margins for the estimated impact 
of a FERC order regading the allocation of MIS0 charges to certain trading activities. 

In addition, NSP-Miiesota entered into a wholesale electric sales margin settlement agreement in the second quarter of 2006 aspart 
of the Minnesota rate ease pceding. The agreement is pending MPUC approval. The satlement agreement provides for a sb&g 
of certain shoa-temr wholesale and commodity trading margins with retail electric customers b e g i i  Jan. 1,2006 'Ibc fmancial 
impaot of this agreement is reflected in the financial statements as of and for the period euded June 30.2006. See Note 4 for more 
information. 
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The following SummsTiZes the components of the changes in base el& utility revenue and base electric utility mergin for the fine Page 30 Of 47 
months mdcd June u): 

h e  Electric U f W  Revenue 

FuGonr of dollars) 2006Vr2005 

f 106 - Total base electric utility reveauc innease 

Base Ek&& Utility MQ& 

Base electic utility margins, which are primarily derived h m  rrtail.custamer sales, increased apprmimately $71 million for the 
secbnd quarter of 2OMi compared with the second quaria of 2OOS. The mcms was primarily due to an interim rate increase in 
Minnesota, subject (0 rehd, the impact of weather and revenue associaad with the MEW. For more infomation see the following 

glmiom of dollars) 2006vr 2005 

' table: 

! 
i 
i 
i 
: 

other 

Natural Gas Utility Margins 

The following table details the changes in natural gas utility rewuc and margin. 'Ihe tost ofnatural gas teads to vary with changing 
sales requkments and the unit cost of natural gas purdwes. However, due to purchased nahual gas cost recovefy mechanisms for 
sales to noli1 customers, fluctuations in the COS( of natural gas have little effect on nahlrat gas margin. 

I 
! 
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Exhibit AXpA11-5 
Page 31 of 47 The following sumnwim the components of the changes in natural gas revmue and margin for the three months ended June 3 0  

Natural gas revenue d d  mainly due to lower natural gas costs in 2006. 

Natural Gas Mar& 

Nomgulated Operating Margins 

The following table details the change in nonregulated revenue and margin, included in continuing operations. 

(Millions of Dollsrr) 
Threesoutha ended Jane30L 

Non-Fnd Operating Expense and Other Costs 

Other O p e r n i I g u n d ~ a i n e n ~ ~ m e s -  ~iIwg-otheroperating andmaintenanceexpmsesforthesecondquarterof2006 
iancased $5 million, OT 1.3 pacent, compared with the same Nod in 2005. Employee benefit costs decreased approximately $7 
million h r  the tlrree months ended June 30,2006 wmpared witb the same period m 2005, primarily due to the year-to-date true upa to 
new aauarial estimam for pension, retiree medical and disability costs. Formore information see the fotlowing tabIe. 

Tbreern&lmded 

Depreciation a n d A m o r f i a h  - Depreciation and amortization expense increased by approximately $10 million, or 5.0 percent, for 
the second quarter of 2006, wmpared with the same period in 2005. The increase due to normal plant additions and a -fly 
approved change in decommissioning accruals resulting man additional depreciation urpeasc of $4.5 million for the current quarter. 
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Exhibit AXMll-5 
Page 32 of 47 Income tuxes- Income taxes for continuing operations d d  by $4.1 million for the sccand quarter of2006, compared with 

2005. T h e ~ ~ t i v e ( a x ~ ~ f a r c 0 n t i r m i n g o ~ t i o n S w t a s  17.3percent forthesecondquarterof2006,compared with24.1 percent 
for the m e  paid in 2005. Thereduction in income taxes and io the effective tax rate was primarily due to the recognition of a tax 
benefit of $1 6.6 mPlion for the second quarter of 2006 relating to capital loss cany forwads that are now considered realizable. 
Previously, such tax benefits did not meet the recognition threshold under tax a m l i n g  requiranents, due to the absence of likely 
capital gabs which provided the oppartunity to make use of the capital loss eany forwards. 

Income Statement Analysis - First Six Months of2006 w. First Six Months of 2005 

Electric UUty, Short-term Wholesale and Commodity Trading Margins 

The following table details the revenue and margin for base electric utility, sh0rt-m wholesale and COmmQdity trading activities. 

Short-term wholesale and commodity trading margins decreased approximately $32 million for the six months ended June 30,2006, 
compared with the same period in 2005. As expected, shon-twm margina declined due. to retrtil sal= growth, which reduced surplus 
generation available for sale in the wholesale market, and decrtased opportunities to sell due to the MIS0 ccntraliized dispatch 
marks. In addition, during the second quarter of 2006 a $6 million h g e  was recorded to commodity trading margins for the 
estimated impact of a FERC order regarding the allocation of MISO charges to certain trading activities. 

[n addition, NSP-Minnesota entered into a wholesale elecbic sales margia settlement agreement in the second quarter of 2006 as part 
of the Miulinnesota rate case proceeding. The agreement i s  pending MpUC approval. The dement  agreement provides for a sharing 
of certain short-tenn wholesale margin8 with retail electric cllstomers beginning Jan. I,  2006. The financial impact of this agreement 
is reflected in the financial statements as of and for the period ended June 30,2006. 

The following summarizes the components of the changes in base electric utility revenue and base elechic utility margin for the six 
months ended June u): 

B e s ~  Elerhic Urilify Reyeme 
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Page 33 of 47 

Base electric utility margins, which are primarily deaived from retail customer sales, increased approximately $138 million for the first 
six months of 2006, compared with the same period in 2005. The increase. was primarily due to an interim rate increase in Minnesota. 
subject to reihd, weather-ndjuted retail sales growth and -ue associated with the MERP. For more information see the following 
table: 

Firm wholesale l A  

Nataral Car Utility Margins 

The following table details the changes in n a i d  gas utility revenue and margin. The cost ofnatural gas tends to vary with changing 
sales requirements and the unit eost of naiural gas purchases However, due to purchased natural gas cos! recovcty mechanisms for 
sal= to mail mtomem, fluctuations in the cost of natural gas have little effect on natural &as margin. 

The following summarizes the components of the changes in natural gas revenue and margin for the six months ended June 3 0  

N a m d  Gas Revenue 

Natural gas wenue increased mainly due to higher n a m l  gas costs in 2006, which were passed through to customers. partially o f k t  
by d d  sal= volumes reflecting the impact of weather. 

Natural Gas Margin 
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Nonngulnbed Operating Margins 

The following !able details the change in nonreguMed revenue and margin, included in continuing operations. 

Non-Fael Operating Expense and Other Costs 

Other Op+?r&gmrB Muhtenunce ikpmses - U t W  - Other operating and maintenance expenses for the fmt six months of 
2006 increased $38 million, 01 4.6 p m t ,  compared with the same period in 2005. The increase is primarily due to hi- plant 
opasting expenses which were pertially offset by lower nuclear plant outage costs. Such outage costs were lower due to two nuclear 
plant nfuelmg, inspection and upgrade outages m 2005 compared with one refieling outage in the same period of 2006. For more 
information, see the following tablc 

Six months mddd 

Total operating and mainmance expense increase 38 

Depredation and Amortiucridn - Depreciation and amortization expense increased $21 million, or 5.4 w e n t ,  for the first six 
months of 2006, compared with the m e  paiod in 2005. The inneaoe is due to normal plant additions and a recently approved 
change in decommissioning accruals resulting in an additional depreciation expense of 69.7 million yar-to-date. 

h o m e  fptyes - hameiaxes for continuing opCrations incleased by $4.3 million lor the fust six months of 2006, compared with 
2005. The increase in imwmc taxes was primarily due to an incrutsc in petax earnings partially offset by a tax benefit of $17.5 
million for the first six months of 2006 for capital loss carry forwards, as previously disuwed. The effeclive tax rate for continuing 
operations was23.0 penent fm the firs1 six months of 2006, compared with 25.6 p e n t  for h e  same period in 2005. The reductiOa 
in the effective tax rate was primarily due to the tax benefit for capital loss cnny forwards 

Factors Afkcting Results of ConUnuing Operations 

FuelSu&v and Cosis 

See a discussion of fuel mpply aod costs at Factors Affecting Results of Continuing Operations in Xcel Energy's Annual Rtport on 
Form IO-K for the yearendedDec. 3I.ZW5. 

Rcguldbn 

For a geaeral discuSSion of the MISO Day 2 market and ~ c t i o n a l  rate proceedings, see Note 4 to the consolidated financial 
statements 

Environntentol Mortrrs 

See a discussion of the Clean Air Intwlate and Mercury Rules at Note 5 to the consolidated hncia l  statements. 

TaiUattCn 

See a discussion of tax matters associated COLIpdicies a! Note 3 to tk consolidated financial statements. 
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Critical Accounting PoIicies 
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! 

l'reparation of financial statements a d  related disclosures m compliance with GAAP requires the application of appropriate technical 
accounling rules and guidance, as well as the ase of airnates The application of thcsc policies necessarily involves judgments 
regarding fihm events, including the likelihood of s u m  of particular projects, legal and regulatory challenp and anticipald 
recovety of costs. Thesejudgments, in and of themselves, could materially impact the financial statements and disclosures based on 
varying asnnptions, which ail may be appropriate touse. In addition, the financial and operating enviromnent also may have a 
significant effect. not only on the operation of the business, but on the results reporled through the application of accounting measures 
used in prm'ng  the financial statements and related disclosum, even if the nature of the accounting policies applied have not 
changed. Item 7, Management's D i d o n  and Analysis, in Xcel Energy's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dec. 31, 
2005, includes a list of sccountiog policies that are most significant to the portrayal o f ' h l  Energy's financial condition and results, 
and that require management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Each of these has a higher likelihood of resulting in 
materially dif€ercnt reported amounts under different conditions or using differan assumptions. 

Pending Awuntiog Changes 

FASB Znrerprsratlon Na 48 flZV48) -In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes- an 
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109". FIN 48 prescr i i  a comprehensive financial statement model ofhaw a company should 
recognize. measun, pnsent, aod disclose oncertain tax positiow that the company has taken or expects to lake in its income tax 
retums. FIN 48 requires that only i n m e  LBX benefits that meet the "more l i y  than not" recognition threshold be recognized or 
mntinne to be recognized on the effective date. Initial derecognitioo amonnts would be reported as a cumulative effecf of a change in 
acunmhg principle. 

FW 48 is effective for f d  years beginniug after Dec. 15,2006. Xml Energy is assessing the i m p t  of the new guidance on all of 
its open tax positions. 

Fnandal Market Risks 

Xcel En- and its subsidiari~ arc exposed to market risks, including changes in commodity prices and interest mtes, as disclosed in 
Management's Discussion and Analysis in its Annual Report on Fonn 10-K fbr the year ended Dec. 31.2005. Commodity price risks 
for Xcel Bnergy's regulated subsidiarits are mitigated in most jurisdictions due to east-based rate regulation. At June 30,2006, there 
were no material changes to the financial market risks lhat affect the quantitative and qualitative disclosures presented as of Dec. 31, 
2005, in Item 7Aof Xcel Bergy's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dec. 31,2005. Valueat-risk, commodity trading 
and hedging information is provided below for informational pups-. 

NSP-MiMeSota maintains bust finds, as requ id  by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, to fund oemlin costs of d e a r  
decommissioning. Tkose investments are exposed to price fluctuations in equity markets and changes in intenst rates. However, 
because the costs of nuclear decommissioning me recovered fhrougb NSP-Minnesota rates, fluctuations in investment fair value do not 
afkct NSP-Minnesota's consolidated results of operations. 

Xcel Energy's short-term wholesale and commodity trading operations measure the outstanding risk exposure to price changes on 
hansactions, contracts and obligillions that have been entered into, but not closed, using an indnshy standard methodology known as 
Value-a-Risk (VaR). VaR expresses the potential change in fair value on the outstanding tmsactim, contracts and obligations over 
a particular period of time, witb a given confidence interva~ nnder n o d  marks conditions. xccl En= utilizes the 
v a r i d c o ~  approach in cakdating VaR. The VaR d e l  employs a 95-pcsccat confidence interval level based on historical 
price movements, lognormal price dimition assumption, delta half-gamma approach for non-linear iustrumeats and a three-day 
holding paid for both electricity and natural gas. 

As of June 30,2006, the VaRs for the c o m d i t y  trading operations were: 

(1) Comprises traosactions for NSP-Minnesota, PSCO and SPS. 

Commodity Trading and Hedging ActMties 

Xed Energy and ita subsidiaries engage in short-tenn wholesale and commodity tradihg activities that are accounted for in accordance 
wi& SPAS No. 133. Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries make wboltsalc pmchasa and sales of eoergy and enezwrehkd produets and 
natnntl gas in order to optimize the valw of their elecCric generating facilities and retail supply contracts. xcel Ener~y also engages in 
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Page 36 of 47 limited comodity trading activities. Xcel Energy utili- various physical and financial contracts and instnimenls for the purchase 

and sale ofeaergy. energy-related products, capacity, nahaal gas, traosmissim and natural gas transportation. 

For the period ended June 30,2006, tbese contracts and instruments, with the exception of transmission and nahual gas pspomtion 
contracts, which meet the definition of a derivative in aocordance with WAS No. 133 waemarked to market. Cbanges IO fiiir value of 
wmmodity trading contracts that do not qualifi for hedge aooounting treatment are r.xurded in income in the reporting period in 
which they occur. 

The changes to the fa i i  value of the commodity trading contracts for the six months ended June 30,2006 and 2005 wcre as follows 
(the commodity trading activity presented in the tables below also includes certain positions witbin the Short-term wholesale activity 
which do not qualify for bedge accounting): 

s 9.4 s 0.8 
E_- 

Fair value of contracts outscanding at June 30 

As of June 30,2006, tht sources offair value of the commodity trading and hedging net meis are as follows: 

Cornmodit), Tra&g Conaaas 
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These represent the fair value of positiom calculated using internal models when directly and indirectly quoted external prices or 
prices deaivd froao external JOUT(XS are not avaihble. Internal models inwrppTste the use of options pricing and tstiraatcs of the 
present value of cash flows based upon undalying contractual teams. The modcls d e c t  managemeat's estimates, taking into account 
observable mrulret prices, es(imated market prices in the absence of quoted m a t h  prim the risk-ike market discount rate, volatility 
factom, estimated cMTelationsof commodity prim and contradual volumes. Market price uncertainty and other rislrs also are !kctored 
into the model 

Normal purchases and saks transactions, as defined by SFAS No. 133. as amended, and certain other long-km power purchase 
amtracts ere not included in the Ki values by source tables as they are not included m the commodity trading operations and are not 
q u a I i m  hedges. 

At June 30.2006.a IO-percent iweaSe in market prices over the next 12 months for trading contracts would mcrease pretax income 
from continuing operationsly appmximately $1.5 million, whexeas a I0-pereglt decmse would dermase pretax income fkom 
continuing operations by appmximately $0.7 million. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Xcel Eaergv and its subsidimes are subject to the risk of fluctuating intaest rates in the normal course ofbusinas. Xcel Energy's 
policy allows interest rate risk to be managed through tbc use of fixad rate debt, floating rate debt and interest d e  derivatives such as 
swaps, caps, mllars and put or call opci0n.s. 

At June 30,2006, a 100-basis-point change in the benchmark rate on Xcel Energy's vanable rate debt would impact pretax interest 
expense by approximately 57.7 million annually, OT appmximateiy $1.9 million per quarter. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial 
statements for a discussion of Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries' interest rate swaps. 

Credit tk  

X d  Eoergy and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk. W i t + i s k  relates to the risk of loss resulting fmm the nonperformanoe by 
a counterparty of its conhactual obligations. Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries maintain credit policies intended to minimize overall 
d i t  risk and actively monitor these policies to reflect changes and scope of operations 

- Prim actively quoted or based on actively quoted prices. 

-Pricc.s based on models and d e r  valuation methods. 

Xcel h e q y  and its subsidiaries conduct standard credit reviews for all countetparties. Xcel Energy employs additional credit risk 
control mdiankms when appropriate, such as letters of credit, pared guaranteeg standardized master netting agreements and 
termination pmvisions that allow for otktting of positive and negative exposures. The credit expasure is monitored and, when 
necessary. the activity with aspecific counterparty is limited until credit enhancement is provided. 

At June 30,2006, a IO-percent inuease in prices would have d t e d  in a net mark-to-market increase in oredit risk exposun of $13.9 
million, while a decreascof IO-pereenl would haye resulted in a derreasc of $12.4 million. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Cash Flows 

piOio~~ofDdlonl  2006 2005 
S k  month eaded b e  30. 

$ 1221 s 197, Total 
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